
 

TUPELO REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 

AUGUST 01, 2023 AT 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS | CITY HALL 

AGENDA 

INVOCATION:                                COUNCIL MEMBER TRAVIS BEARD 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:       COUNCIL MEMBER LYNN BRYAN 

CALL TO ORDER:                         COUNCIL PRESIDENT TRAVIS BEARD 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND REPORTS AGENDA 

PROCLAMATIONS 

RECOGNITION GIRL/BOY SCOUTS 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

1. IN THE MATTER OF ANNUAL REPORT OF POLICE ADVISORY BOARD - BILL 

ALLEN 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

(CLOSE REGULAR MEETING OPEN PUBLIC AGENDA) 

PUBLIC AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2. IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOT MOWING DRB 

3. IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING-2024 BUDGET KH 

APPEALS 

- 1 -



CITIZEN HEARING 

(CLOSE PUBLIC AGENDA AND OPEN REGULAR SESSION) 

ACTION AGENDA 

ROUTINE AGENDA 

4. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JULY 18, 2023 COUNCIL 

MEETING 

5. IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH 

CHAD MIMS 

LYNN BRYAN 

ROSIE JONES 

6. IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS KH 

7. IN THE MATTER OF (2) NEW BANK ACCOUNTS-STATE FUNDS KH 

8. IN THE MATTER OF AMENDING POLICE ADVISORY BOARD ORDINANCE 

CHAPTER 2, SECTION 2-266 (2), CITY OF TUPELO CODE OF ORDINANCES BL 

9. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

HAVEN ACRES DITCH PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO 

EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

10. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

MITCHELL ROAD CROSS DRAINS PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

11. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

GUN CLUB ROAD BOX CULVERT PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

12. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

BARNES CROSSING ROAD BOX CULVERT PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

13. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

MEDICAL PARK PIPE REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

- 2 -



14. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

DANIELLE COVE PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO 

EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

15. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

WATER LINE LUMPKIN TO THOMAS PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

16. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

HWY 45 OUTFALL PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 

SAID AGREEMENTAC 

17. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

SEWER LINE SW PUMP STATION PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

18. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE RIP 

RAP LUMPKIN TO KINGS CREEK PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

19. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

ROBINS FIELD ARCHED PIPE REPAIRS PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

20. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

HOLLY HILL PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 

SAID AGREEMENTAC 

21. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

GUM TREE PARK PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO 

EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

22. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

FORD CIRCLE PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 

SAID AGREEMENTAC 

23. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

CITY PARK PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID 

AGREEMENTAC 

- 3 -



24. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

VAN BUREN PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 

SAID AGREEMENTAC 

25. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE 

RIDGEWAY DRIVE PIPE REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 

26. IN THE MATTER OF TRA MINUTES OF JANUARY 19 AND MAY 30, 2023 DB 

27. IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW / APPROVE PROPERTIES FOR LOT MOWING DRB 

28. IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE LIENS FOR LOT MOWING DRB 

29. IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL VAN BUREN AVE DRAINAGE 

IMPROVEMENTS BID NO. 2023-032PW JULY 2023 CW 

30. IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL FOR 6 MONTH SUPPLY HOT MIX 2023-

031PW JULY 2023 - CW 

31. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CADENCE BANK ARENA MINUTES OF JUNE 

19, 2023 KK 

32. IN THE MATTER OF RESOLUTION FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT THE 

RESOLUTION ADOPTED ON JUNE 20, 2023, WAS DULY PUBLISHED AS 

REQUIRED BY LAW; THAT NO SUFFICIENT PROTEST DESCRIBED IN SAID 

RESOLUTION HAS BEEN FILED BY THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE CITY; 

AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF SAID BONDS AND/OR BOND BL 

33. IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTANCE OF A DONATION OF RABBIT DRIVE TO BE 

USED AS A PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR VEHICULAR AND PEDESTRIAN 

INGRESS AND EGRESS, USE AND MAINTENANCE SR 

(CLOSE REGULAR SESSION) 

STUDY AGENDA 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT 

- 4 -



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Don Lewis, COO 

DATE July 19, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF ANNUAL REPORT OF POLICE ADVISORY BOARD 
  

 

Request:  

Enter Text Here 

 

- 5 -

Item # 1.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Dennis Bonds, Interim Director of Development Services  

DATE July 26, 2023  

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOT MOWING DRB 
  

 

Request: DRB 

Public Hearing for properties on final lot mowing list. Preliminary list is attached. Final 

list will be provided prior to the meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 6 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 08/01/2023 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

1.  44454 113E0614400 813 
SHUMACOLA 
TRL 

COHEA CECIL J 813 SHUMACOLA TRAIL TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

2.   44455 101H0115002 823 
SHUMACOLA 
TRL 

MAH JEANINE E 3408 DELL GLADE DRIVE MEMPHIS, TN 38111 SB 

3.   44458 089J3118902 910 ALLEN ST RILEY BILLY E 2605 WHITE ROCK DR BUFORD, GA 30519 DS 

4.   44459 089J3121200 905 ALLEN ST SCOTT SAUNDRA 
J 

386 ROAD 1600 BELDEN, MS 38826 DS 

5.   44466 077E2616600 2546 
ARLINGTON DR 

THOMPSON 
MARTES A & 
DIAMOND 

2546 ARLINGTON ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

6.   44469 077E2616800 2558 
ARLINGTON DR 

DANIEL ALICE V 2558 ARLINGTON ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

7.   44470 077E2618100 2654 
ARLINGTON DR 

SMITH JOANNA 2654 ARLINGTON ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

8.   44471 078S2802904 437 JONES DR REYNOLDS 
JOHNNY R JR & 
KRISTIN 

437 JONES DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

9.   44472 078S2802906 399 JONES DR CLARKE JOHN 339 JONES DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

10.   44475 077F2615600 708 VASSAR DR COLATRELLA 
LAURA L 

708 VASSAR DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

11.   44476 077F2617100 704 JAMES DR MICHAEL 
CHARLES & MARY 
S 

704 JAMES DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

12.   44480 105H1509100 3257 WILLIE 
MOORE RD 

TUCKER 
LEUNDRA & 
DAMITA 

106 CR RD 1046 TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

- 7 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

13.  44481 105H1509300 3305 WILLIE 
MOORE RD 

BERRY WILLIE JR 
& JANNIE H 

3305 WILLIE MOORE RD TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

14.   44482 106S1404900 3330 WILLIE 
MOORE RD 

OWENS LULA 
MAE 

3330 WILLIE MOORE ROAD TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

15.   44483 105H1502400 3302 ROBERT 
KENNEDY DR 

TUCKER ROSIE W 3302 ROBERT KENNEDY TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

16.   44484 105H1502000 3360 ROBERT 
KENNEDY DR 

ANDERSON 
GINCIE M 

3360 ROBERT KENNEDY DR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

17.   44485 105H1501100 3351 BEASLEY 
DR 

C & C RENTALS & 
HOME REPAIR 
LLC 

704 TURNER DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

18.   44500 106A1404000 2948 MOORE 
AVE 

DUKES ELIJAH E & 
RENEE 

881 CR 115 NEW ALBANY, MS 38652 RS 

19.   44502 105D1504100 2972 MOORE 
AVE 

HUBBARD ESSIE 2972 MOORE AVE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

20.   44504 105D1504400 2987 MOORE 
AVE 

COBB OCELO 2987 MOORE AVE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

21.   44509 105D1504700 3031 MOORE 
AVE 

CYCLONE 
ASSETS/BMO 
HARRIS 

P O BOX 1414 MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55480 RS 

22.   44514 105D1505100 3091 MOORE 
AVE 

DANCER MCCOY 1103 FILLMORE DR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

23.   44515 075Q2200200 3793 FAIR OAKS 
DR 

BOYLES ELLEN R 
& CHASE 
MICHAEL 

3793 FAIR OAKS DR BELDEN, MS 38826 TP 

24.   44516 105D1506300 3106 BEASLEY 
DR 

MOORE 
OPHELENE (LE) 

P O BOX 2968 TUPELO, MS 38803 RS 

- 8 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

25.  44518 105H1505100 3362 MEADOW 
DR 

DANCY LORINE K 3362 MEADOW DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

26.   44522 105H1503200 3347 MEADOW 
DR 

BROWN 
TRAVARES 

3392 CRAIGMONT CIR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

27.   44524 105D1503500 3064 MOORE 
AVE 

RICHARDSON 
MEGAN 

P O BOX 87 RED BANKS, MS 38661 RS 

28.   44528 089J3117100 434 N PARK ST JELG 
ENTERPRISES LLC 

3702 OLD OAK RD CORINTH, MS 38834 SB 

29.   44533 075R2207900 3758 FAIR OAKS 
DR 

BRINKLEY 
SHIRLEY A 

3758 FAIR OAKS DRIVE BELDEN, MS 38826 TP 

30.   44534 077E2604900 912 BIRCH ST HARRIS EBONY 912 BIRCH ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

31.   44535 077M3603700 1151 W 
JACKSON ST 

WHITMON 
LANDON C & 
ABBY P 

1151 W JACKSON ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

32.   44536 112A0404000 526 CANAL ST GERSH CARLA R 
REVOCABLE 
LIVING TRUS 

25121 DANABIRCH DANA PANT, CA 92629 RS 

33.   44537 112A0402700 412 CANAL ST MERRITT 
SUNNYA 

PO BOX 1694 VERONA, MS 38878 RS 

34.   44543 088N3302900 312 CANAL ST FRESH 
PROPERTIES LLC 

593 SOUTHGATE RD SACRAMENTO, CA 95815 RS 

35.   44545 088N3302200 206 CANAL ST PRATT JENNIFER 1165 HWY 47 HOUSTON, MS 38851 RS 

36.   44547 088N3307802 132 WAYSIDE 
DR 

PAYNE LORETTA 
& PATRICK 
HARRIS 

132 WAYSIDE TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

- 9 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

37.  44548 088N3307801 130 WAYSIDE 
DR 

SCRUGGS 
MELVIN T & 
DEAN WEBB & 
BRANDON M 

1104 CR 811 SALTILLO, MS 38866 RS 

38.   44550 072N0901600 4742 ENDVILLE 
RD 

TURNER NEAL 60 CRUMP ROAD BELDEN, MS 38826 TP 

39.   44552 075R2200200 3744 
LANSDOWNE 
DR 

SOUTHERN LIFE 
PROPERTIES LLC 

4005 WHITE SPRINGS ROAD FULTON, MS 38843 TP 

40.   44553 075R2204800 3576 FAIR OAKS 
DR 

JM HARRISON 
PROPERTIES LLC 

4098 LINCOLN CIRCLE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

41.   44555 101H0120600 1017 TAFT ST MITCHELL EVA 1017 TAFT ST TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

42.   44556 077K3505001 2100-2200 
HOLMES ST 

TRI-MAX LLC 1185 QUAIL CREEK RD TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

43.   44557 085N2101200 1641 OAKVIEW 
CIR 

ABDELAZIZ SAFA 
A AND HUSSEIN 
TALAT A 

8317 PINE SPRINGS ROAD MERIDIAN, MS 39305 DS 

44.   44559 077K3505000 2400 HOLMES 
ST UNIT 1-4 

HOLMES 
RENTALS LLC 

P O BOX 3098 TUPELO, MS 38803 TP 

45.   44560 077K3516700 102 PINEHILL 
DR 

RUBB-JEE II LLC 122 LONG HORN DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

46.   44561 077K3500102 2404 HOLMES 
ST 

DEW CHARLES W 
& JANICE G 

2404 HOLMES ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

47.   44563 105D1500400 2931 BEASLEY 
DR 

HUBBARD JAMES 1605 HOMEBERG LN MADISON, WI 53716 RS 

48.   44566 077K3500104 2412 HOLMES 
ST 

NI JASON & 
FALGUNI WAHID 
SK 

2412 HOLMES ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

- 10 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

49.  44569 077J3505600 2037 WINFIELD 
DR 

ALLREDGE DORIS 2037 WINFIELD DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

50.   44570 112B0402300 1805 BRIAR 
RIDGE RD 

KELLY 
WOODROW & 
LOUISE 

1807 BRIAR RIDGE RD TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

51.   44573 112C0310300 2260 CAMELOT 
CIR 

WALKER 
DONDRA & 
STEPHANIE 

2260 CAMELOT CR TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

52.   44575 077K3516500 2201 HOLMES 
ST 

WILSON AUBREIL 
& CHARLES 

2201 HOLMES TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

53.   44576 077F2615000 705 VASSAR DR SINGH NIRBHAI 122 LONGHORN DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

54.   44578 077F2611500 1406 LAMBARD 
DR 

THORNTON 
STEPHANIE APRIL 

P O BOX 1531 TUPELO, MS 38802 TP 

55.   44579 077F2608000 2368 
PATTERSON DR 

SCRUGGS 
MELVIN T & 
STEVE 
WHITEHEAD 

1230 CR 811 SALTILLO, MS 38866 TP 

56.   44580 077F2601500 1416 BRISTOW 
DR 

MORRIS 
CHETIQUA M & 
ORLAND C 

1416 W BRISTOW DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

57.   44581 077F2601400 1414 W 
BRISTOW DR 

POOLE HARRISON 
& SCHWAKE 
AMBER N'COLE 

1414 W BRISTOW DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

58.   44582 077F2600900 1404 W 
BRISTOW DR 

FEDERAL 
NATIONAL 
MORTGAGE 
ASSOCIATION 

13455 NOEL ROAD SUITE 600 TP 

59.   44583 077F2611100 1403 BRISTOW 
DR 

SHAW RICHARD 
RUSSELL 

1403 W BRISTOW TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

60.   44590 077G2517300 1313 LAMBARD 
DR 

MORGAN 
SHIRLEY 

1313 LAMBARD DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

- 11 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

61.  44592 077G2517000 1307 LAMBARD 
DR 

VERNER PATRICK 
& JESSICA M 

1307 LAMBARD DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

62.   44593 077G2516100 1224 LAMBARD 
DR 

DRAGOVITS 
PERRISH A & 
LEXER L WALLACE 

639 WALNUT ST TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

63.   44594 077G2514102 807 GEORGE 
AVE 

MICHAEL CHASE 
& MARLEY 
MAHARREY 

807 GEORGE AVE TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

64.   44595 077G2513400 1003 E 
BRISTOW DR 

SPEARMAN JOEY 
RENTALS LLC 

173 CR 13 TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

65.   44596 077G2512100 1020 
MARQUETTE 

ROBERSON 
TORLANDO & 
SANTANA 

1020 MARQUETTE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

66.   44598 112C0311400 2259 CAMELOT 
CIR 

SOUTHERN LIFE 
PROPERTIES LLC 

4005 WHITE SPRINGS ROAD FULTON, MS 38843 RS 

67.   44599 112C0309800 860 MCNEECE 
ST 

SEPULVEDA 
ALONSO & 
GUERRERO 
SONIA 

860 MCNEECE ST TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

68.   44600 112C0309700 824 MCNEECE 
ST 

DEARING 
TAWANA 

824 MCNEESE ST TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

69.   44602 077F2615300 702 VASSAR DR GLAMOUR 
ENTERPRISES LLC 

1896 SWAN CIRCLE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

70.   44604 076Q2401400 1804 TRACE 
AVE 

WFH PROPERTIES 
LLC 

1208 MAXWELL TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

71.   44605 088Q3405204 350 MCNEECE 
ST 

DOZIERJOYCE 
TACKETT (LE) 

350 MCNEECE TUPELO, MS 38802 RS 

72.   44606 075Q2201400 2072 COLONIAL 
ESTATES RD 

ODLE JACKSON 
ALEXANDER 

2072 COLONIAL ESTATES RD BELDEN, MS 38826 DS 

- 12 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

73.  44607 077C2502800 1606 TRACE 
AVE 

WILSON BOBBY L 604 RACOVE DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

74.   44610 112A0411100 1012 WILSON 
ST 

COONTAIL 
INVESTMENTS 
LLC 

3900 ESSEX LANE, SUITE 340 HOUSTON, TX 77027 RS 

75.   44615 112A0407800 512 LAKE ST GRAB THE MAP 
LLC 

3195 MCCULLOUGH BLVD BELDEN, MS 38826 RS 

76.   44616 088N3312100 1004 KINGSLEY 
DR 

RAY OTIS 179 MC 121 TEXARKANA, AR 71854 RS 

77.   44617 089J3101500 503 MAGNOLIA 
DR 

HENSON SLEEP 
RELIEF INC 

P O 728 TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

78.   44618 089J3103000 MAGNOLIA ST CHURCH 
INSPIRATIONAL 
COMMUNITY 
BAPTIST 

405 CLAYTON AVE TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

79.   44619 077M3610100 204 RANKIN 
BLVD 

IRVING SUSAN 
DIANNE 

204 RANKIN BLVD TUPELO, MS 38804 SB 

80.   44620 077M3610000 206 RANKIN 
BLVD 

LOVE RUSSELL B 206 RANKIN BLVD TUPELO, MS 38804 SB 

81.   44621 101G0111000 2020 
LAWNDALE DR 

PERKINS 
MICHAEL & 
ELIZABETH A 

2020 LAWNDALE DR TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

82.   44622 077E2617000 2570 
ARLINGTON DR 

FOUNTAIN 
PROPERTIES LLC 

64 ASHLEY STREET TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

83.   44623 089J3131900 318 RILEY ST SOPER ANDREW 
GRAHAM 

404 AIR PARK ROAD TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

84.   44624 089J3132000 325 RILEY ST FUTURE HOPE 
RENTALS LLC 

777 CR 251 SALTILLO, MS 38866 SB 

- 13 -

Item # 2.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

85.  44625 077E2616900 2564 
ARLINGTON DR 

BROWN RYAN 
ALEXANDER & 
KIMBERLY R 

2564 ARLINGTON DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

86.          

87.          

88.          

89.          

90.          

91.          

92.          

93.          

94.          

95.          

96.          

 

- 14 -

Item # 2.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE August 1, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING-2024 BUDGET KH 
  

 

Request:  

Public Hearing for the 2024 Budget. 

 

ATTACHED: 

Public Notice 

 

 

- 15 -

Item # 3.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 

A public hearing will be held on August 1, 2023 to provide the 

general public with an opportunity to comment on the taxing and 

spending plan incorporated in the proposed budget of the City of 

Tupelo for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023 and ending 

September 30, 2024.  The meeting will be held at 71 East Troy, 2nd 

Floor Council Chambers at 6:00 p.m.  All interested citizens are 

encouraged to attend and comment. 

 
Please publish July 19 and July 26 

- 16 -

Item # 3.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Missy Shelton, Council Clerk 

DATE July 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JULY 18, 2023 

COUNCIL MEETING 
  

 

Request:  

For your review and approval. 

 

- 17 -

Item # 4.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MUNICIPAL MINUTES CITY OF TUPELO 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI 

JULY 18, 2023 

Be it remembered that a regular meeting of the Tupelo City Council was held in the Council Chambers 

in the City Hall building on Tuesday, July 18, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. with the following in attendance: 

Council Members Chad Mims, Travis Beard, Nettie Davis, Buddy Palmer, Janet Gaston and Rosie 

Jones; Stephen Reed, Assistant City Attorney, and Missy Shelton, Clerk of the Council.  Council 

Member Lynn Bryan was absent. Council Member Davis introduced Rev. Chris Traylor, who led the 

invocation. Council Member Buddy Palmer led the pledge of allegiance.  

 

Council President Travis Beard called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to confirm the agenda and agenda 

order, as presented. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION  

 

Mayor Todd Jordan recognized Cadence Bank Arena Director Kevan Kirkpatrick for 20 years of service 

with the City of Tupelo. 

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

Council Member Davis told everyone about the upcoming grand opening of the Mayfield Dynasty 

establishment to be held on July 28 at 6:00 PM. and invited all to attend. She also asked for prayers for 

Bridgett Wilson who recently lost her father. 

Council Member Palmer congratulated Kevan Kirkpatrick on a job well done with the Cadence Bank 

Arena and Conference Center. He stated that Kevan is a real asset to the City of Tupelo. 

Council Member Jones gave congratulations to Jonathan Rogers, a recent graduate of Tupelo High 

School, who has recently been drafted to play pro baseball. 

Council Member Gaston said the Aquatic Center and Shockwave did a great job hosting the MS State 

swim meet. 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

Mayor Todd Jordan said the Southeast Swim Meet will be held in Tupelo in a couple of weeks, and we'll 

have a big crowd visiting in Tupelo.  

- 18 -

Item # 4.



PUBLIC AGENDA 

IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOT MOWING 

No one appeared to address the lot mowing on the following properties: 

Parcel          Location 

078D2704700 WINCHESTER CIR 

088Q3400800 1815 MARTIN HILL DR 

089F3017800 536 N GREEN ST 

089F3018600 590-592 N GREEN ST 

089F3018500 588 N GREEN ST 

089F3004700 505 W BARNES ST 

105D1505100 3091 MOORE AVE 

078D2703300 1526 GUN CLUB RD 

077F2617900 709 LAR-ELI-DO DR 

077Q3605800 120 S HIGHLAND DR 

079V3213100 25 HARVESTER'S SQ 

079V3211200 5475 TURNING LEAF CV 

075S1600102 3424 WALSH RD 

 ACTION AGENDA 

IN THE MATTER OF AMENDMENTS TO THE ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

(TABLED AT MAY 2, 2023 MEETING)  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to bring the matter of 

amendments to the animal control ordinance, tabled at the May 2, 2023, meeting, off the table. Of those 

present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

 

Council member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to approve the Ordinance 

Amending Chapter 6 - Animals and Fowl - Article I - In General, and Article IV – Dogs, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Tupelo, Mississippi. After a brief explanation of the amendments by Asst. 

City Attorney Stephen Reed, of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX A 

ROUTINE AGENDA 

IN THE MATTER OF MINUTES OF JULY 5, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve the minutes of the 

Regular Council meeting of July 5, 2023. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY 

 

- 19 -

Item # 4.



Bills were reviewed at 4:30 p.m. by Council Members Beard, Davis, Gaston and Palmer. Council 

Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to approve the payment of the checks, 

bills, claims and utility adjustments.  The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX B 

IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to approve the advertising and 

promotional items, as presented. After a brief explanation by CFO/City Clerk Kim Hanna, of those 

present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX B 

IN THE MATTER OF BUDGET AMENDMENT #8 FOR FY 2023   

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to approve Budget Amendment 

#8 for FY 2023. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX C 

IN THE MATTER OF PROPERTIES FOR LOT MOWING  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to adjudicate the properties on 

the final lot mowing list as menaces to the public health, safety and welfare of the community and in 

need of cleaning and to approve their cleaning in accordance with Mississippi Code Annotated 21-19-

11. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX D 

IN THE MATTER OF OF PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES JUNE 5, 2023 

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to approve the Planning 

Committee minutes of the June 5, 2023, meeting. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

APPENDIX E 

IN THE MATTER OF LIENS FOR LOT MOWING  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve Resolutions Assessing 

Judgment Liens Against Real Property for the Costs Associated with Lot Mowing in Accordance with 

Miss. Code Annotated § 21-19-11 , for the following properties: 

Parcel          Location 

078D2704700 WINCHESTER CIR 

088Q3400800 1815 MARTIN HILL DR 

089F3017800 536 N GREEN ST 

089F3018600 590-592 N GREEN ST 

089F3018500 588 N GREEN ST 

089F3004700 505 W BARNES ST 

105D1505100 3091 MOORE AVE 

078D2703300 1526 GUN CLUB RD 

077F2617900 709 LAR-ELI-DO DR 

077Q3605800 120 S HIGHLAND DR 

079V3213100 25 HARVESTER'S SQ 

079V3211200 5475 TURNING LEAF CV 

075S1600102 3424 WALSH RD 

- 20 -

Item # 4.



Such properties had been previously 1) adjudicated menaces to the public health, safety and welfare of 

the community and in need of cleaning and 2) cleaned pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. 21-19-11 (1972 as 

amended).The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX F 

IN THE MATTER OF DEMOLITIONS LOCATED AT 117 & 117 ½ HIGHLAND DRIVE 

(PARCEL 077Q-36-085-00) (TABLED AT JUNE 20, 2023 MEETING)  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to take off the able the 

demolition of the structures located at 117 and 117 ½ Highland Drive previously tabled at the June 20, 

2023 meeting. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor.  

 

Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve the demolition of 

structures located at 117 and 117 ½ Highland Drive for being a menace to the public health, safety and 

welfare in accordance with Mississippi Code Annotated 21-19-11.  Of those present, the vote was 

unanimous in favor. APPENDIX G 

 

IN THE MATTER OF UNMARKED VEHICLE RESOLUTION  

Police Chief John Quaka submitted a Resolution with a current list of vehicles that the Tupelo Police 

Department maintain as unmarked. Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member 

Palmer to approve the resolution. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX H 

IN THE MATTER OF UNMARKED POLICE SURVEILLANCE VEHICLE  

Police Chief John Quaka submitted a Resolution to approve a seized vehicle for use with the North MS 

Narcotics Unit as unmarked. Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer to 

approve the resolution. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX I 

IN THE MATTER OF BID REJECTION FOR THE PACKAGE GENERATOR SYSTEM 

INSTALLATION AND LABOR & MATERIAL FOR TUPELO CITY HALL 2023-018PW  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to reject bids for Bid # 2023-

018WL - Package Generator System Installation and Labor and Material for Tupelo City Hall, because 

all bids received exceeded the construction cost estimate by greater than ten percent (10%). Miss. Code 

Anno. §31-5-39 (1972 as amended.) Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX J 

IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL FOR CITY PARK IMPROVEMENTS / ARPA 

DRAINAGE PROJECT BID NO. 2023-028PW  

The City advertised and accepted bids for Bid #2023-28PW – City Park Improvements/ARPA Drainage 

Project. Multiple bids were received with the lowest and best bid being Hodges Construction in the 

amount of $317,693.75. Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to award 

the bid to Hodges Construction. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX K 

IN THE MATTER OF CVB BOARD MINUTES OF JULY 11, 2023  

- 21 -

Item # 4.



Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to approve the CVB minutes of 

the July 11, 2023 meeting. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX L 

IN THE MATTER OF CVB INTERNATIONAL TRAVEL OCTOBER 20-23, 2023  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve a request for 

international travel for Jennie Bradford Curlee to travel to Brussels and Mechelen, Belgium, for the 

Joker Travel Event consumer show and blues concert for the time period of October 20-23, 2023, and 

set the maximum daily per diem rate at $134/day. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor.  A 

copy of the letter of request is attached to these minutes as APPENDIX M 

IN THE MATTER OF BAD DEBT WRITE-OFF JANUARY 2022 – JUNE 2022  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve writing off to the bad 

debt file the list of Water and Light Collections accounts. The total bad debt amount represents 0.07% of 

the total revenue for the period of January 2022 thru June 2022. Efforts will continue to be made to 

collect these accounts even though they have been transferred to this accounting classification. Of those 

present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX N 

IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 1226 BOGGAN DRIVE AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND CITY 

CLERK TO EXECUTE A PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ALL OTHER DOCUMENTS 

NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE PURCHASE OF SAID PROPERTY 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer to approve an order authorizing 

the purchase of real property located at 1226 Boggan Drive and to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute a purchase agreement and all other documents necessary to effectuate the purchase of said 

property. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX O 

IN THE MATTER OF A BROADCAST RIGHTS AGREEMENT WITH 5GTV FOR THE 

PUBLIC BROADCASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENT  

Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve a broadcast rights 

agreement with 5GTV for the public broadcasting City Council meetings and to authorize the Mayor 

and City Clerk to execute all documents. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

APPENDIX P 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to determine the need for an 

executive session. Assistant City Attorney Stephen Reed said the session will be the possible acquisition 

of real property under Miss. Code Anno. 25-41-7(g) (1972 as amended). Of those present, the vote was 

unanimous in favor. 

 

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to close the regular session and 

enter executive session for discussion of possible acquisition of real property under Miss. Code Anno. 

- 22 -

Item # 4.



25-41-7(g) (1972 as amended). Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor at 6:29 PM. 

 

After discussion in executive session, Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member 

Gaston to return to the regular meeting at 6:39 PM. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Council at this time, Council Member Mims moved, 

seconded by Council Member Gaston, to adjourn the meeting. Of those present, the vote was unanimous 

in favor. 

 

This the 18th day of July, 2023, at 6:39 PM. 

 

 

 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Travis Beard, Council President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Missy Shelton, Council Clerk 

 

       APPROVED 

 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Todd Jordan, Mayor 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Date 

 

 

 

 

  

 

- 23 -

Item # 4.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO/City Clerk 

DATE July 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH 
  

 

Request:  

For your review and approval. 

 

- 24 -

Item # 5.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE August 1, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS KH 
  

 

Request:  

Proposed item for approval is for the purpose of advertising and bringing into favorable notice 

the opportunities, possibilities and resources of the City of Tupelo.  

 

ITEMS: 

Lee County Courier         $350.00       Back to School Ad from Mayor & City Council 

 

 

- 25 -

Item # 6.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE August 1, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF (2) NEW BANK ACCOUNTS-STATE FUNDS KH 
  

 

Request:  

To open 2 new bank accounts for the purpose of receiving and expending State Funds from the 

MS Department of Finance and Administration for the Ballard Park Improvements & for the 

Railroad Improvement Project.  MS DFA requires that the funding for each project be 

maintained separately.   

 

The new bank accounts will be opened at Cadence Bank.  The account names will be ”City of 

Tupelo State Funds-Ballard Park Improvement 2023,” and “City of Tupelo State Funds-Railroad 

Improvement Project”.    

 

ITEMS: 

Resolution  

 

 

- 26 -

Item # 7.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Ben M. Logan, City Attorney 

DATE July 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AMENDING POLICE ADVISORY BOARD 

ORDINANCE CHAPTER 2, SECTION 2-266 (2), CITY OF TUPELO CODE 

OF ORDINANCES 
  

 

Request:  

Police Advisory Board desires to return to monthly meetings. See attached ordinance. 

 

- 27 -

Item # 8.



ORDINANCE   

  

ORDINANCE AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF  

TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, CHAPTER 2 – ADMINISTRATION – ARTICLE  

XI - POLICE ADVISORY BOARD - SECTION 2-266 – MEETINGS -  

SUBSECTION (2)  

  

  WHEREAS, the city has established a police advisory board; and  

  WHEREAS, the board is currently meeting every other month; and  

  WHEREAS, the board desires to return to a monthly meeting schedule; and  

  WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that this amendment is reasonable, 

fair and necessary in order to protect the public health, safety and general welfare of the city.    

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, as follows:  

  SECTION 1. The prefatory statements are incorporated herein by reference.  

  

SECTION 2. Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article XI, Section 2-266 (2) shall be 

amended to read:   

  

2. The board shall have one (1) regular meeting every month on a day of the month and 

at a time to be determined by the board.   

  

  SECTION 3. This amendatory ordinance has been articulated to be consistent with the 

constitution and laws of the State of Mississippi.  The City Council finds that this amendatory 

ordinance does not violate any provision of the United States Constitution and federal law.  In 

the event that any court of competent jurisdiction finds that any provision of this amendatory 

ordinance is unconstitutional or invalid, the remainder shall stay in full force and effect.  

   

  SECTION 4. This ordinance shall become effective on the thirtieth (30th) day following 

the adoption hereof.  The City Council Clerk shall cause the ordinance to be published one (1) 

time in a local newspaper with a general circulation.  

    

- 28 -

Item # 8.



 

  

  The foregoing ordinance was proposed in a motion by Council Member                  ,         

seconded by Council Member                    , and after discussion, no council member having 

called for a reading, was brought to a vote as follows:  

    Councilman Chad Mims        _____  

    Councilman Lynn Bryan         _____     

    Councilman Travis Beard        _____  

    Councilwoman Nettie Davis       _____  

    Councilman Buddy Palmer        _____  

    Councilwoman Janet Gaston       _____  

 Councilwoman Rosie Jones        _____  

      

 Whereupon, the motion having received a majority of affirmative votes, the President of the 

Council declared that the Ordinance had been passed and adopted on this the 1st day of August, 

2023.     

             CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI  

  

            BY: ____________________________________  

                    TRAVIS BEARD, PRESIDENT  

 

ATTEST:  

  

_____________________________________  

Missy Shelton, Clerk of the Council  

  

  

            APPROVED:  

              

            ________________________________________  

            Todd Jordan, Mayor  

  

                    _________________________________________  

                            DATE 

- 29 -

Item # 8.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE HAVEN ACRES DITCH PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE 

THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 24-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $1,493,793.00 

Match: $729,336.72 

 

- 30 -

Item # 9.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 24-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Haven Acres Ditch” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 31 -

Item # 9.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $1,493,793.00, with 

said amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $729,336.72; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$729,336.72; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $35,119.56.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $59,751.72. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 32 -

Item # 9.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Seven Hundred Twenty-Nine Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-Six Dollars and 

Seventy-Two Cents ($729,336.72) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 33 -

Item # 9.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 34 -

Item # 9.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 35 -

Item # 9.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 36 -

Item # 9.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 37 -

Item # 9.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 38 -

Item # 9.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 39 -

Item # 9.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 40 -

Item # 9.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 41 -

Item # 9.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 42 -

Item # 9.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 43 -

Item # 9.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 44 -

Item # 9.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 45 -

Item # 9.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 46 -

Item # 9.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 47 -

Item # 9.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 48 -

Item # 9.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 49 -

Item # 9.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 50 -

Item # 9.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 51 -

Item # 9.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 52 -

Item # 9.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 53 -

Item # 9.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Haven Acres Ditch 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes re-shaping the ditch, placement of concrete ditch 

pavement, riprap stream and bank protection, storm water piping, and associated 

appurtenances along an existing ditch near Willie Moore Road and Beasley Road 

in Haven Acres. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. On or about October 2, 2023, submit a complete set of plans, specifications, 

contract documents on each construction contract, and all applicable 

permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to MDEQ;  

 

c. On or about May 20, 2024, advertise each construction contract for bids; 

 

d. On or about June 18, 2024, but no later than 45 days after advertisement for 

construction bids on each construction contract, receive bids; 

- 54 -

Item # 9.



 

25 

  

e. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

f. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

g. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

k. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

l. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

m.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 55 -

Item # 9.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 56 -

Item # 9.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 57 -

Item # 9.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 58 -

Item # 9.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 59 -

Item # 9.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 60 -

Item # 9.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 61 -

Item # 9.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 62 -

Item # 9.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE MITCHELL ROAD CROSS DRAINS PROJECT AND TO 

AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 26-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $372,600.00 

Match: $176,904.00 

 

- 63 -

Item # 10.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 26-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Mitchell Road Cross Drains” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 64 -

Item # 10.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $372,600.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $176,904.00; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$176,904.00; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $18,792.00.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $14,904.00. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 65 -

Item # 10.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

One Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand Nine Hundred Four Dollars and Zero Cents 

($176,904.00) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 66 -

Item # 10.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 67 -

Item # 10.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 68 -

Item # 10.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 69 -

Item # 10.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 70 -

Item # 10.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 71 -

Item # 10.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 72 -

Item # 10.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 73 -

Item # 10.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 74 -

Item # 10.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 75 -

Item # 10.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 76 -

Item # 10.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 77 -

Item # 10.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 78 -

Item # 10.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 79 -

Item # 10.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 80 -

Item # 10.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 81 -

Item # 10.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 82 -

Item # 10.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 83 -

Item # 10.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 84 -

Item # 10.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 85 -

Item # 10.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 86 -

Item # 10.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Mitchell Road Cross Drains 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes replacement of cross drain storm water pipe culverts 

and associated appurtenances along Mitchell Road. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. On or about July 21, 2023, advertise each construction contract for bids; 

 

d. On or about August 18, 2023, but no later than 45 days after advertisement 

for construction bids on each construction contract, receive bids; 

  

- 87 -

Item # 10.



 

25 

e. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

f. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

g. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

k. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

l. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

m.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 88 -

Item # 10.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 89 -

Item # 10.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 90 -

Item # 10.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 91 -

Item # 10.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 92 -

Item # 10.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 93 -

Item # 10.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 94 -

Item # 10.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 95 -

Item # 10.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE GUN CLUB ROAD BOX CULVERT PROJECT AND TO 

AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 27-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $552,600.00 

Match: $265,104.00 

 

- 96 -

Item # 11.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 27-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Gun Club Road Box Culvert” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 97 -

Item # 11.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $552,600.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $265,104.00; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$265,104.00; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $22,392.00.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $22,104.00. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 98 -

Item # 11.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Two Hundred Sixty-Five Thousand One Hundred Four Dollars and Zero Cents 

($265,104.00) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 99 -

Item # 11.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 100 -

Item # 11.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 101 -

Item # 11.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 102 -

Item # 11.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 103 -

Item # 11.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 104 -

Item # 11.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 105 -

Item # 11.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure 

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 106 -

Item # 11.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 107 -

Item # 11.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 108 -

Item # 11.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 109 -

Item # 11.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 110 -

Item # 11.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 111 -

Item # 11.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 112 -

Item # 11.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 113 -

Item # 11.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 114 -

Item # 11.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 115 -

Item # 11.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 116 -

Item # 11.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 117 -

Item # 11.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 118 -

Item # 11.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 119 -

Item # 11.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Gun Club Road Box Culvert 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes installation of a new concrete box culvert and 

associated appurtenances under Gun Club Road. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. On or about July 7, 2023, advertise each construction contract for bids; 

 

d. On or about August 4, 2023, but no later than 45 days after advertisement 

for construction bids on each construction contract, receive bids; 

  

- 120 -

Item # 11.



 

25 

e. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

f. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

g. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

k. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

l. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

m.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 121 -

Item # 11.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 122 -

Item # 11.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 123 -

Item # 11.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 124 -

Item # 11.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 125 -

Item # 11.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 126 -

Item # 11.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 127 -

Item # 11.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 128 -

Item # 11.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE BARNES CROSSING ROAD BOX CULVERT PROJECT 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 28-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $912,000.00 

Match: $441,480.00 

 

- 129 -

Item # 12.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 28-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Barnes Crossing Road Box Culvert” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 130 -

Item # 12.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $912,000.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $441,480.00; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$441,480.00; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $29,040.00.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $36,480.00. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 131 -

Item # 12.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Four Hundred Forty-One Thousand Four Hundred Eighty Dollars and Zero Cents 

($441,480.00) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 132 -

Item # 12.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 133 -

Item # 12.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 134 -

Item # 12.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 135 -

Item # 12.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 136 -

Item # 12.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 137 -

Item # 12.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 138 -

Item # 12.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 139 -

Item # 12.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 140 -

Item # 12.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 141 -

Item # 12.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 142 -

Item # 12.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 143 -

Item # 12.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 144 -

Item # 12.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 145 -

Item # 12.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 146 -

Item # 12.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 147 -

Item # 12.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 148 -

Item # 12.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 149 -

Item # 12.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 150 -

Item # 12.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 151 -

Item # 12.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 152 -

Item # 12.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Barnes Crossing Road Box Culvert 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes installation of a new concrete box culvert and 

associated appurtenances under Barnes Crossing Road. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. On or about December 1, 2023, submit a complete set of plans, 

specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and all 

applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. On or about April 8, 2024, advertise each construction contract for bids; 

 

d. On or about May 7, 2024, but no later than 45 days after advertisement for 

construction bids on each construction contract, receive bids; 

  

- 153 -

Item # 12.



 

25 

e. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

f. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

g. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

k. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

l. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

m.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 154 -

Item # 12.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 155 -

Item # 12.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 156 -

Item # 12.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 157 -

Item # 12.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 158 -

Item # 12.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 159 -

Item # 12.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 160 -

Item # 12.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 161 -

Item # 12.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE MEDICAL PARK PIPE REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND 

TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 30-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $250,400.00 

Match: $118,016.00 

 

- 162 -

Item # 13.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 30-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Medical Park Pipe Replacement” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 163 -

Item # 13.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $250,400.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $118,016.00; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$118,016.00; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $14,368.00.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $10,016.00. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 164 -

Item # 13.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

One Hundred Eighteen Thousand Sixteen Dollars and Zero Cents ($118,016.00) (the 

“Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 165 -

Item # 13.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 166 -

Item # 13.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 167 -

Item # 13.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 168 -

Item # 13.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 169 -

Item # 13.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 170 -

Item # 13.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 171 -

Item # 13.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 172 -

Item # 13.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 173 -

Item # 13.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 174 -

Item # 13.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 175 -

Item # 13.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 176 -

Item # 13.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 177 -

Item # 13.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 178 -

Item # 13.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 179 -

Item # 13.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 180 -

Item # 13.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 181 -

Item # 13.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 182 -

Item # 13.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

 

- 183 -

Item # 13.



 

22 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 184 -

Item # 13.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 185 -

Item # 13.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Medical Park Pipe Replacement 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes replacement of storm drain pipe culvert and associated 

appurtenances near Medical Park Circle. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. On or about August 1, 2023, submit a complete set of plans, specifications, 

contract documents on each construction contract, and all applicable 

permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to MDEQ;  

 

c. On or about September 4, 2023, advertise each construction contract for 

bids; 

 

d. On or about October 3, 2023, but no later than 45 days after advertisement 

for construction bids on each construction contract, receive bids; 

  

- 186 -

Item # 13.



 

25 

e. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

f. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

g. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

k. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

l. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

m.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 187 -

Item # 13.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 188 -

Item # 13.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 189 -

Item # 13.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 190 -

Item # 13.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 191 -

Item # 13.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 192 -

Item # 13.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 193 -

Item # 13.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 194 -

Item # 13.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE DANIELLE COVE PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE 

THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 119-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $552,600.00 

Match: $265,104.00 

 

- 195 -

Item # 14.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 119-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Danielle Cove Pipe” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 196 -

Item # 14.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $552,600.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $265,104.00; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$265,104.00; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $22,392.00.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $22,104.00. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 197 -

Item # 14.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Two Hundred Sixty-Five Thousand One Hundred Four Dollars and Zero Cents 

($265,104.00) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 198 -

Item # 14.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 199 -

Item # 14.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 200 -

Item # 14.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 201 -

Item # 14.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 202 -

Item # 14.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 203 -

Item # 14.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 204 -

Item # 14.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 205 -

Item # 14.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 206 -

Item # 14.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 207 -

Item # 14.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 208 -

Item # 14.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 209 -

Item # 14.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 210 -

Item # 14.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 211 -

Item # 14.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 212 -

Item # 14.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 213 -

Item # 14.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 214 -

Item # 14.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 215 -

Item # 14.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy St 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 216 -

Item # 14.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 217 -

Item # 14.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 218 -

Item # 14.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Danielle Cove Pipe 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes re-shaping a ditch, placement of concrete ditch 

pavement, replacement of pipe culverts and storm drain inlets, and associated 

appurtenances. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. On or about February 1, 2024, submit a complete set of plans, 

specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and all 

applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. On or about May 13, 2024, advertise each construction contract for bids; 

 

d. On or about June 10, 2024, but no later than 45 days after advertisement for 

construction bids on each construction contract, receive bids; 

- 219 -

Item # 14.



 

25 

  

e. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

f. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

g. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

k. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

l. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

m.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 220 -

Item # 14.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 221 -

Item # 14.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 222 -

Item # 14.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 223 -

Item # 14.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 224 -

Item # 14.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 225 -

Item # 14.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 226 -

Item # 14.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 227 -

Item # 14.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE WATER LINE LUMPKIN TO THOMAS PROJECT AND 

TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 177-2-DW-5.15 

Project Cost: $743,400.00 

Match: $359,736.00 

 

- 228 -

Item # 15.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 177-2-DW-5.15 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Water Line Lumpkin to Thomas” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 229 -

Item # 15.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $743,400.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $359,736.00; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$359,736.00; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $23,928.00.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $29,736.00. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 230 -

Item # 15.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Three Hundred Fifty-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty-Six Dollars and Zero 

Cents ($359,736.00) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 231 -

Item # 15.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 232 -

Item # 15.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 233 -

Item # 15.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 234 -

Item # 15.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 235 -

Item # 15.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 236 -

Item # 15.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 237 -

Item # 15.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 238 -

Item # 15.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 239 -

Item # 15.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 240 -

Item # 15.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 241 -

Item # 15.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 242 -

Item # 15.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 243 -

Item # 15.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 244 -

Item # 15.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 245 -

Item # 15.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 246 -

Item # 15.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 247 -

Item # 15.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 248 -

Item # 15.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy St 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 249 -

Item # 15.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 250 -

Item # 15.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 251 -

Item # 15.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Water Line Lumpkin to Thomas 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes replacement of ductile iron water pipe with poly-

wrapped ductile iron water pipe and associated appurtenances. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. No later than 45 days after advertisement for construction bids on each 

construction contract, receive bids; 

  

d. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

- 252 -

Item # 15.



 

25 

  

e. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

f. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

g. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

k. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

l.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 253 -

Item # 15.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 254 -

Item # 15.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 255 -

Item # 15.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 256 -

Item # 15.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 257 -

Item # 15.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 258 -

Item # 15.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 259 -

Item # 15.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 260 -

Item # 15.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE HWY 45 OUTFALL PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 179-2-CW-5.5 

Project Cost: $1,541,186.00 

Match: $746,028.44 

 

- 261 -

Item # 16.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 179-2-CW-5.5 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Hwy 45 Outfall” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 262 -

Item # 16.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $1,541,186.00, with 

said amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $746,028.44; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$746,028.44; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $49,129.12.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $61,647.44. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 263 -

Item # 16.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Seven Hundred Forty-Six Thousand Twenty-Eight Dollars and Forty-Four Cents 

($746,028.44) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 264 -

Item # 16.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 265 -

Item # 16.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 266 -

Item # 16.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 267 -

Item # 16.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 268 -

Item # 16.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 269 -

Item # 16.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 270 -

Item # 16.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 271 -

Item # 16.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 272 -

Item # 16.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 273 -

Item # 16.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 274 -

Item # 16.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 275 -

Item # 16.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 276 -

Item # 16.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 277 -

Item # 16.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 278 -

Item # 16.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 279 -

Item # 16.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 280 -

Item # 16.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 281 -

Item # 16.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy St 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 282 -

Item # 16.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 283 -

Item # 16.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 284 -

Item # 16.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Hwy 45 Outfall 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes replacement of clay gravity sewer pipe with PVC 

gravity sewer pipe and associated appurtenances. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. No later than 45 days after advertisement for construction bids on each 

construction contract, receive bids; 

  

d. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

- 285 -

Item # 16.



 

25 

  

e. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

f. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

g. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

k. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

l.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 286 -

Item # 16.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 287 -

Item # 16.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 288 -

Item # 16.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 289 -

Item # 16.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 290 -

Item # 16.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 291 -

Item # 16.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 292 -

Item # 16.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 293 -

Item # 16.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE SEWER LINE SW PUMP STATION PROJECT AND TO 

AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 195-2-CW-5.5 

Project Cost: $5,336,590.00 

Match: $2,663,463.60 

 

- 294 -

Item # 17.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 195-2-CW-5.5 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Sewer Line SW Pump Station” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 295 -

Item # 17.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $5,336,590.00, with 

said amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $2,663,463.60; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$2,663,463.60; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $9,662.80.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $213,463.60. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 296 -

Item # 17.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Two Million Six Hundred Sixty-Three Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Three Dollars 

and Sixty Cents ($2,663,463.60) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 297 -

Item # 17.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 298 -

Item # 17.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 299 -

Item # 17.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 300 -

Item # 17.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 301 -

Item # 17.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 302 -

Item # 17.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 303 -

Item # 17.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 304 -

Item # 17.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 305 -

Item # 17.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 306 -

Item # 17.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 307 -

Item # 17.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 308 -

Item # 17.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 309 -

Item # 17.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 310 -

Item # 17.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 311 -

Item # 17.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 312 -

Item # 17.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 313 -

Item # 17.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 314 -

Item # 17.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 315 -

Item # 17.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 316 -

Item # 17.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 317 -

Item # 17.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Sewer Line SW Pump Station 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes replacement of ductile iron pressure sewer pipe with 

PVC pressure sewer pipe and associated appurtenances. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. No later than 45 days after advertisement for construction bids on each 

construction contract, receive bids; 

  

d. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

- 318 -

Item # 17.



 

25 

  

e. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

f. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

g. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

k. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

l.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 319 -

Item # 17.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 320 -

Item # 17.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 321 -

Item # 17.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 322 -

Item # 17.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 323 -

Item # 17.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 324 -

Item # 17.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 325 -

Item # 17.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 326 -

Item # 17.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE RIP RAP LUMPKIN TO KINGS CREEK PROJECT AND 

TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 196-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $3,038,990.00 

Match: $1,196,559.60 

 

- 327 -

Item # 18.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 196-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Rip Rap Lumpkin to Kings Creek” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 328 -

Item # 18.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $3,038,990.00, with 

said amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $1,496,559.60; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$1,496,559.60; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $45,870.80.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $121,559.60. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 329 -

Item # 18.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

One Million Four Hundred Ninety-Six Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-Nine Dollars 

and Sixty Cents ($1,496,559.60) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 330 -

Item # 18.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 331 -

Item # 18.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 332 -

Item # 18.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 333 -

Item # 18.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 334 -

Item # 18.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 335 -

Item # 18.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 336 -

Item # 18.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 337 -

Item # 18.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 338 -

Item # 18.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 339 -

Item # 18.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 340 -

Item # 18.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 341 -

Item # 18.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 342 -

Item # 18.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 343 -

Item # 18.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 344 -

Item # 18.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 345 -

Item # 18.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 346 -

Item # 18.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 347 -

Item # 18.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 348 -

Item # 18.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 349 -

Item # 18.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 350 -

Item # 18.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Rip Rap Lumpkin to Kings Creek 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes installation of borrow, riprap and/or gabion baskets 

and associated appurtenances to stabilize the stream banks from Lumpkin Avenue 

to King’s Creek. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. No later than 45 days after advertisement for construction bids on each 

construction contract, receive bids; 

  

- 351 -

Item # 18.



 

25 

d. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

e. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

f. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

g. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

k. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

l.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 352 -

Item # 18.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 353 -

Item # 18.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 354 -

Item # 18.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 355 -

Item # 18.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 356 -

Item # 18.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 357 -

Item # 18.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 358 -

Item # 18.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 359 -

Item # 18.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE ROBINS FIELD ARCHED PIPE REPAIRS PROJECT AND 

TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 198-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $828,790.00 

Match: $401,651.60 

 

- 360 -

Item # 19.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 198-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Robins Field Arched Pipe Repairs” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 361 -

Item # 19.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $828,790.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $401,651.60; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$401,651.60; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $25,486.80.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $33,151.60. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 362 -

Item # 19.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Four Hundred One Thousand Six Hundred Fifty-One Dollars and Sixty Cents 

($401,651.60) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 363 -

Item # 19.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 364 -

Item # 19.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 365 -

Item # 19.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 366 -

Item # 19.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 367 -

Item # 19.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 368 -

Item # 19.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 369 -

Item # 19.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 370 -

Item # 19.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 371 -

Item # 19.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 372 -

Item # 19.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 373 -

Item # 19.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 374 -

Item # 19.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 375 -

Item # 19.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 376 -

Item # 19.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 377 -

Item # 19.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 378 -

Item # 19.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 379 -

Item # 19.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 380 -

Item # 19.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 381 -

Item # 19.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 382 -

Item # 19.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 383 -

Item # 19.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Robins Field Arched Pipe Repairs 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes the removal of brick arch culvert, removal of drainage 

pipe, removal of clay drainage pipe, installation of HDPE and RCP, removal and 

replacement of curb and steel grate inlets, removal and replacement of necessary 

asphalt pavement and associated appurtenances. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

c. On or about July 29, 2023, advertise each construction contract for bids; 

 

d. No later than 45 days after advertisement for construction bids on each 

construction contract, receive bids; 

- 384 -

Item # 19.



 

25 

  

e. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

f. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

g. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

k. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

l. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

m.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 385 -

Item # 19.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 386 -

Item # 19.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 387 -

Item # 19.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 388 -

Item # 19.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 389 -

Item # 19.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 390 -

Item # 19.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 391 -

Item # 19.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 392 -

Item # 19.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE HOLLY HILL PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 199-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $386,172.00 

Match: $183,746.88 

 

- 393 -

Item # 20.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 199-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Holly Hill Pipe Project” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 394 -

Item # 20.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $386,172.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $183,746.88; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$183,746.88; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $18,678.24.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $15,446.88. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 395 -

Item # 20.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

One Hundred Eighty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Six Dollars and Eighty-

Eight Cents ($183,746.88) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 396 -

Item # 20.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 397 -

Item # 20.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 398 -

Item # 20.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 399 -

Item # 20.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 400 -

Item # 20.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 401 -

Item # 20.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 402 -

Item # 20.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 403 -

Item # 20.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 404 -

Item # 20.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 405 -

Item # 20.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 406 -

Item # 20.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 407 -

Item # 20.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 408 -

Item # 20.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 409 -

Item # 20.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 410 -

Item # 20.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 411 -

Item # 20.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 412 -

Item # 20.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 413 -

Item # 20.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6413 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 414 -

Item # 20.

mailto:todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov


 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 415 -

Item # 20.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_____________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 416 -

Item # 20.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Holly Hill Pipe Project 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes removal of drainage pipe, installation of HDPE, RCP 

and RCAP, removal and replacement of curb and drainage inlets, and associated 

appurtenances near Holly Hills Drive. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. On or about March 7, 2024, advertise each construction contract for bids; 

 

d. On or about April 4, 2024, but no later than 45 days after advertisement for 

construction bids on each construction contract, receive bids; 

- 417 -

Item # 20.



 

25 

  

e. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

f. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

g. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

k. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

l. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

m.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 418 -

Item # 20.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 419 -

Item # 20.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 420 -

Item # 20.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 421 -

Item # 20.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 422 -

Item # 20.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 423 -

Item # 20.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 424 -

Item # 20.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 425 -

Item # 20.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE GUM TREE PARK PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE 

THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 200-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $716,720.00 

Match: $346,568.80 

 

- 426 -

Item # 21.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 200-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Gum Tree Park Pipe Project” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 427 -

Item # 21.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $716,720.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $346,568.80; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$346,568.80; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $23,582.40.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $28,668.80. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 428 -

Item # 21.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Three Hundred Forty-Six Thousand Five Hundred Sixty-Eight Dollars and Eighty 

Cents ($346,568.80) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 429 -

Item # 21.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 430 -

Item # 21.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 431 -

Item # 21.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 432 -

Item # 21.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 433 -

Item # 21.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 434 -

Item # 21.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 435 -

Item # 21.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 436 -

Item # 21.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 437 -

Item # 21.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 438 -

Item # 21.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 439 -

Item # 21.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 440 -

Item # 21.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 441 -

Item # 21.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 442 -

Item # 21.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 443 -

Item # 21.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 444 -

Item # 21.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 445 -

Item # 21.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 446 -

Item # 21.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 447 -

Item # 21.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 448 -

Item # 21.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 449 -

Item # 21.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Gum Tree Park Pipe Project 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes removal and replacement of HDPE, CMP and RCP, 

removal and replacement of curb inlets and steel grates, and associated 

appurtenances near Gumtree Park. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. No later than 45 days after advertisement for construction bids on each 

construction contract, receive bids; 

  

- 450 -

Item # 21.



 

25 

d. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

e. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

f. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

g. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

k. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

l.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 451 -

Item # 21.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 452 -

Item # 21.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 453 -

Item # 21.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 454 -

Item # 21.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 455 -

Item # 21.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 456 -

Item # 21.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 457 -

Item # 21.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 458 -

Item # 21.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE FORD CIRCLE PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE 

THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 201-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $294,176.00 

Match: $139,367.04 

 

- 459 -

Item # 22.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 201-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Ford Circle Pipe Project” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 460 -

Item # 22.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $294,176.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $139,367.04; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$139,367.04; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $15,441.92.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $11,767.04. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 461 -

Item # 22.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

One Hundred Thirty-Nine Thousand Three Hundred Sixty-Seven Dollars and Four 

Cents ($139,367.04) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 462 -

Item # 22.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 463 -

Item # 22.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 464 -

Item # 22.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 465 -

Item # 22.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 466 -

Item # 22.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 467 -

Item # 22.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 468 -

Item # 22.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 469 -

Item # 22.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 470 -

Item # 22.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 471 -

Item # 22.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 472 -

Item # 22.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 473 -

Item # 22.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 474 -

Item # 22.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 475 -

Item # 22.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 476 -

Item # 22.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 477 -

Item # 22.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 478 -

Item # 22.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 479 -

Item # 22.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 480 -

Item # 22.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 481 -

Item # 22.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 482 -

Item # 22.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Ford Circle Pipe Project 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes removal of CMP, installation of RCAP, removal and 

replacement of curb and steel grate inlets, and associated appurtenances near Ford 

Circle. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. On or about March 5, 2024, advertise each construction contract for bids; 

 

d. On or about April 2, 2024, but no later than 45 days after advertisement for 

construction bids on each construction contract, receive bids; 

- 483 -

Item # 22.



 

25 

  

e. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

f. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

g. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

k. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

l. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

m.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 484 -

Item # 22.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 485 -

Item # 22.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 486 -

Item # 22.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 487 -

Item # 22.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 488 -

Item # 22.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 489 -

Item # 22.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 490 -

Item # 22.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 491 -

Item # 22.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE CITY PARK PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 202-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $454,672.00 

Match: $217,286.88 

 

- 492 -

Item # 23.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 202-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “City Park Pipe Project” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 493 -

Item # 23.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $454,672.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $217,286.88; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$217,286.88; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $20,098.24.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $18,186.88. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 494 -

Item # 23.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Two Hundred Seventeen Thousand Two Hundred Eighty-Six Dollars and Eighty-

Eight Cents ($217,286.88) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 495 -

Item # 23.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 496 -

Item # 23.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 497 -

Item # 23.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 498 -

Item # 23.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 499 -

Item # 23.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 500 -

Item # 23.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 501 -

Item # 23.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 502 -

Item # 23.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 503 -

Item # 23.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 504 -

Item # 23.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 505 -

Item # 23.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 506 -

Item # 23.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 507 -

Item # 23.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 508 -

Item # 23.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 509 -

Item # 23.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 510 -

Item # 23.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 511 -

Item # 23.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 512 -

Item # 23.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 513 -

Item # 23.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 514 -

Item # 23.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 515 -

Item # 23.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

City Park Pipe Project 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes removal and replacement of RCP, removal and 

replacement of steel grate inlets, removal and replacement of riprap, removal and 

repair of chain link fence crossings, repair and/or replacement of sidewalk, and 

associated appurtenances near City Park. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. No later than 45 days after advertisement for construction bids on each 

construction contract, receive bids; 

  

- 516 -

Item # 23.



 

25 

d. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

e. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

f. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

g. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

k. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

l.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 517 -

Item # 23.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 518 -

Item # 23.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 519 -

Item # 23.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 520 -

Item # 23.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 521 -

Item # 23.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 522 -

Item # 23.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 523 -

Item # 23.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 524 -

Item # 23.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE VAN BUREN PIPE PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 203-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $450,904.00 

Match: $215,486.16 

 

- 525 -

Item # 24.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 203-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Van Buren Pipe Project” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 526 -

Item # 24.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $450,904.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $215,486.16; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$215,486.16; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $19,931.68.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $18,036.16. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 527 -

Item # 24.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

Two Hundred Fifteen Thousand Four Hundred Eighty-Six Dollars and Sixteen Cents 

($215,486.16) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 528 -

Item # 24.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 529 -

Item # 24.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 530 -

Item # 24.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 531 -

Item # 24.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 532 -

Item # 24.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 533 -

Item # 24.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 534 -

Item # 24.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 535 -

Item # 24.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 536 -

Item # 24.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 537 -

Item # 24.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 538 -

Item # 24.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 539 -

Item # 24.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 540 -

Item # 24.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 541 -

Item # 24.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 542 -

Item # 24.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 543 -

Item # 24.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 544 -

Item # 24.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 545 -

Item # 24.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 546 -

Item # 24.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 547 -

Item # 24.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 548 -

Item # 24.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Van Buren Pipe Project 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes removal of CMP, installation of RCP, removal and 

replacement of curb and steel grate inlets, removal and replacement of asphalt 

pavement, and associated appurtenances near Van Buren Avenue. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. No later than 45 days after advertisement for construction bids on each 

construction contract, receive bids; 

  

- 549 -

Item # 24.



 

25 

d. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

e. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

f. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

g. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

k. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

l.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 550 -

Item # 24.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 551 -

Item # 24.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 552 -

Item # 24.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 553 -

Item # 24.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 554 -

Item # 24.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 555 -

Item # 24.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 556 -

Item # 24.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 557 -

Item # 24.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 01 August 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MDEQ TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT 

FUNDS FOR THE RIDGEWAY DRIVE PIPE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTAC 
  

Request: Seeking the Council’s approval to ratify the agreement between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the City of Tupelo to provide matching 

grant funds, and to authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Agency: Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality 

Grant: Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant 

Grant #: 204-2-SW-5.6 

Project Cost: $350,128.00 

Match: $166,355.12 

 

- 558 -

Item # 25.



 

1 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPALITY AND COUNTY WATER INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  MDEQ AGREEMENT NO. 204-2-SW-5.6 

COUNTY OF HINDS  

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

This document is a Subaward Agreement (this “Agreement”) between the Mississippi 

Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”),  a Pass-through entity as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 

200.1, and City of Tupelo, UEI Number: DK9PFM6XSDR7 (“SUBRECIPIENT”, and together 

with MDEQ, the “Parties”, and each, a “Party”) to provide grant funds for the Work conducted 

under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure (“MCWI”) Grant Program 

(the “Program”) as specified in Article 4. 

1. SOURCE OF FUNDS  

The grant funds provided by this Agreement are made available pursuant to the 

Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-

2-131), provided through funds awarded to the State of Mississippi pursuant to the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), Public Law 117-2 (March 11, 2021), provided through the 

U.S. Department of Treasury pursuant to Federal Award # SLFRP0003 and CFDA No. 21.027 

(Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds) awarded on May 10, 2021, and subsequently 

to MDEQ through Mississippi Senate Bill 3056, 2022 Regular Session (April 26, 2022) and 

Mississippi House Bill 1716, 2023 Regular Session (March 22, 2023).  

2. PROJECT  

Under this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to disburse funds to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance 

with the terms herein to reimburse the costs associated with SUBRECIPIENT’s implementation 

of the project entitled “Ridgeway Drive Pipe Replacement” (the “Project”).    

3. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this Project is to make a necessary investment in an upgrade to 

SUBRECIPIENT’s infrastructure. The Project is not for Research and Development.    

4. SCOPE OF WORK   

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform the tasks as described and identified in Attachment A, 

Scope of Work (the “Work”).  

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

SUBRECIPIENT is subject to U.S. Treasury’s regulations governing ARPA, and all 

applicable terms and conditions in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 of the Office of Management and Budget 

(“OMB”) Uniform Guidance for Grants and Cooperative Agreements, as amended, including 

- 559 -

Item # 25.



 

2 

Appendix II to Part 200, and all other OMB circulars, executive orders or other federal laws or 

regulations applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. All of these terms and 

conditions of this Agreement apply to SUBRECIPIENT and, as applicable, its 

Contractors/Contracted Parties. 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE   

The Period of Performance shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement and shall 

end on September 30, 2026. Costs incurred on March 3, 2021, or thereafter, but prior to the 

commencement of the Period of Performance may be reimbursed provided MDEQ determines 

such costs are allowable and eligible. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete all tasks included in 

the Scope of Work within this Period of Performance, unless otherwise specified in writing by 

MDEQ. If, at any time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT 

determines, based on the Work performed to date, that the Work cannot be completed within the 

Period of Performance, SUBRECIPIENT shall so notify MDEQ immediately in writing. 

Failure to adhere to the requirements placed on MCWI funds can result in termination of 

this Agreement and may result in a demand for repayment by MDEQ.  Moreover, if MDEQ is 

required to return any funds as a result of misspending on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, MDEQ 

reserves the right to seek and receive repayment of the amount of funds in question.    

7. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT  

A. Project Cost.  The total Project cost shall not exceed $350,128.00, with said 

amount broken down as follows:   

i. MCWI Grant Funds shall not exceed $166,355.12; 

ii. The Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“LFRF”) received by 

SUBRECIPIENT from the U.S. Treasury or the Mississippi Department of Finance 

and Administration used as matching funds in this Agreement shall not exceed 

$166,355.12; 

iii. Any LFRF transferred to SUBRECIPIENT from a county or 

municipality (“Transferred LFRF”) shall not exceed $0.00; 

iv.  Any other funds that SUBRECIPIENT obligates(ed) to the project 

that are not eligible for MCWI match (“Other Funds”) shall not exceed $17,417.76.  

B. Professional fees that will be reimbursed with MCWI Grant Funds shall not 

exceed $14,005.12. This amount is included in, and is not in addition to, the maximum 

MCWI Grant Funds specified in Article 7.A.i, above and Article 7.C., below. 

SUBRECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the amount of professional 

fees, as defined in the MCWI Regulations, Rule 1.1 E. (18), that may be matched with 

MCWI Grant Funds is limited to no more than 4% of the total amount of costs actually 

incurred on the Project, which in no case may be more than the total Project cost set forth 

in Article 7.A., above.   

- 560 -

Item # 25.



 

3 

C. Consideration.  As consideration for the performance of the tasks included 

in this Agreement, MDEQ agrees to reimburse SUBRECIPIENT an amount not to exceed 

One Hundred Sixty-Six Thousand Three Hundred Fifty-Five Dollars and Twelve 

Cents ($166,355.12) (the “Maximum Amount”). 

MDEQ is under no obligation to provide funds to SUBRECIPIENT if 

SUBRECIPIENT has not met, or does not continue to meet, minimum federal requirements 

to receive funds, such as but not limited to, adhering to applicable procurement 

requirements found in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 et al.  Moreover, MDEQ bears no responsibility 

relative to SUBRECIPIENT’s expenditure of its own funds.  To that end, in the process of 

review of documentation for reimbursement, as well as compliance monitoring activities 

associated with the Program, MDEQ is not responsible or liable for any expenditure made 

by SUBRECIPIENT with its funds.  As such, SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for 

compliance with federal and state requirements associated with its LFRF, its LFRF 

Transferred Funds, and any other funds it uses towards its Project that are not a part of the 

MCWI Grant Funds.  SUBRECIPIENT must substantiate all expenditures in a compliant 

manner.  MDEQ is under no obligation to reimburse costs incurred that are not 

demonstrably compliant with federal and state law.  

D. Payment. Subject to available funding, as set forth in the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, MDEQ shall pay all properly invoiced amounts due to 

SUBRECIPIENT within forty-five (45) days after MDEQ’s receipt of such invoice, except 

for any amounts disputed by MDEQ in good faith. Legislative approval may be required 

where MDEQ receives any claim of payment from SUBRECIPIENT that includes Work 

performed outside a one (1) year period from receipt of such invoice. 

i. Request for Payment.  SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment of 

funds hereunder for Project costs on a reimbursement basis (such requests, 

“Reimbursement Requests”), unless otherwise directed by MDEQ. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit Reimbursement Requests and supporting 

documentation of costs incurred as required by MDEQ to the MCWI 

Reimbursement Portal, located at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. All 

Reimbursement Requests for time periods ending June 30 of any year, during the 

Period of Performance under this Agreement, shall be submitted no later than July 

31 of that same year. Final invoice(s) shall be submitted to MDEQ no later than 

September 30, 2026. The Reimbursement Request shall include, at a minimum, 

breakdowns of personnel, position, dates worked, tasks performed, and totals for 

contract costs, materials, supplies and equipment, included in the Reimbursement 

Request. SUBRECIPIENT shall make Reimbursement Requests in accordance 

with the following procedures and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT may make Reimbursement Requests no 

more frequently than once monthly during the Period of Performance of this 

Agreement. 

- 561 -

Item # 25.



 

4 

2. SUBRECIPIENT shall request payment under this 

Agreement only for the costs necessary to complete the Scope of Work 

specifically stated and required under this Agreement.  

3. SUBRECIPIENT shall not request payment under this 

Agreement for other services or other work the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

contractors may provide under any other Subaward or Contract not related 

to this Project. 

4. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide on each Reimbursement 

Request the amount of its LFRF, Transferred LFRF and Other Funds 

expended. SUBRECIPIENT shall also provide the amount requested for 

professional fees. MDEQ will then determine the amount of MCWI Grant 

Funds that each Reimbursement Request qualifies for within the Program 

regulations and procedures. 

 

5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands that no payment, including 

final payment, shall be interpreted as acceptance of defective and 

incomplete Work, and SUBRECIPIENT shall remain responsible for 

performance in strict compliance with this Agreement. If MDEQ rejects, 

condemns or fails to approve any part of the Scope of Work, it may issue a 

Notice to Cure or terminate this Agreement.   

6.  MDEQ reserves the right to refuse to pay all or any part of 

the funds requested in a Reimbursement Request for any of the following 

reasons: 1) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs SUBRECIPIENT is seeking 

reimbursement for are not reasonable or necessary for the completion of the 

Work in this Agreement, 2) at MDEQ’s discretion, the costs are ineligible 

for reimbursement under this Project, 3) at the time the request is submitted 

SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Agreement, 4) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to perform the Work to date in accordance with the Scope 

of Work, or 5) at the time the request is submitted the SUBRECIPIENT has 

otherwise failed to comply with applicable state, federal, or local laws and 

regulations. 

ii. Indirect Cost Rate.  Reimbursement of indirect costs and/or 

overhead is not allowed under this Agreement. 

E. Limitations on Expenditures.  MDEQ shall reimburse SUBRECIPIENT 

only for documented expenditures incurred on or after March 3, 2021: (i) reasonable and 

necessary to carry out the Scope of Work described in Attachment A; (ii) documented by 

contracts or other evidence of liability and (iii) incurred in accordance with all applicable 

requirements for the expenditure of funds payable under this Agreement. 

F. Improper Payments. Any item of expenditure by SUBRECIPIENT under 

the terms of this Agreement which is found by auditors, investigators, other authorized 

- 562 -

Item # 25.



 

5 

representatives of MDEQ, the U.S. Treasury, the Mississippi State Auditor or other federal 

or state instrumentality to be improper, unallowable, in violation of federal or state law, or 

the terms of this Agreement, or involving any fraudulent, deceptive, or misleading 

representations or activities of SUBRECIPIENT shall become SUBRECIPIENT’s 

liability, and shall be paid solely by SUBRECIPIENT, immediately upon notification of 

such, from funds other than those provided by MDEQ under this Agreement. This 

provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

Any funds that are paid by MDEQ to SUBRECIPIENT that are not necessary for 

the completion of the Work in this Agreement and/or that are deemed ineligible must be 

returned to MDEQ immediately upon receiving MDEQ's written notification for return of 

funds. 

G. Clawback. If funds are expended improperly or if an expense submitted for 

reimbursement is disallowed or deemed ineligible under federal, state or local laws and 

regulations, then payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to clawback by MDEQ, 

the State of Mississippi or the U.S. Treasury.  

8. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by written agreement 

signed by the Parties hereto.  

9. PROGRESS REPORTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide required progress reports during the Period of Performance 

of this Agreement in a format prescribed by MDEQ. These reports shall be submitted in accordance 

with the following schedule, which may be amended from time to time: 

 

REPORTING PERIOD DEADLINE 

October – December 

January – March 

April – June 

July – September 

 

January 15 

April 15 

July 15 

October 15 

 

This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect 

to any reports which SUBRECIPIENT is required to submit to MDEQ following the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

10. FAILURE TO TIMELY PERFORM 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable measures to ensure MCWI Grant Funds and 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds are obligated by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that its failure to obligate MCWI Grant Funds and 

- 563 -

Item # 25.



 

6 

LFRF used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024, may result in MDEQ 

modifying the MCWI Grant Funds awarded or terminating this Agreement. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement 

with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement or 

any extension thereof authorized by MDEQ or if SUBRECIPIENT otherwise fails to satisfy the 

Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this Agreement, MDEQ may 

notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or nonperformance. If such delay or 

nonperformance is not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by MDEQ, 

MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with the Agreement or such part of the 

Agreement as to which there has been delay or a failure to perform properly.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions by MDEQ, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve 

property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the State has an interest.  

11. FINAL PAYMENT AND REPORT  

When SUBRECIPIENT has performed all the Work, SUBRECIPIENT shall transmit to 

MDEQ a comprehensive report on the Work in a format prescribed by MDEQ (the “Final Report”). 

The Final Report shall be provided by SUBRECIPIENT to MDEQ within forty-five (45) days of 

Project completion in a format prescribed by MDEQ. Upon acceptance of Final Report, MDEQ 

will process final Reimbursement Request.  

Upon satisfactory completion of the Work performed under this Agreement, as a condition 

before final payment under this Agreement or as a termination settlement under this Agreement, 

SUBRECIPIENT shall certify to MDEQ, on a form provided by MDEQ, that the final payment 

amount is the remaining amount that SUBRECIPIENT is owed under this Agreement and that no 

additional payment for its Work under this Project will be submitted for reimbursement. Unless 

otherwise provided in the Agreement, by state law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the Parties 

in this Agreement, final payment under this Agreement or settlement upon termination of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of MDEQ's claims against SUBRECIPIENT or its sureties 

under this Agreement. 

In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

that acceptance of final payment from MDEQ will constitute an agreement by SUBRECIPIENT 

to release and forever discharge MDEQ, its agents, employees, officers, representatives, affiliates, 

successors and assigns from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, actions, causes of 

action or suits of any nature whatsoever, which SUBRECIPIENT has at the time of acceptance of 

final payment or may thereafter have, arising out of, in connection with or in any way relating to 

any and all injuries and damages of any kind as a result of or in any way relating to this Agreement.  

12. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE  

MDEQ requires that SUBRECIPIENT have in place, prior to the receipt of funds, a 

financial management system that will be able to isolate and trace every dollar funded under this 

Agreement from receipt to expenditure and have on file appropriate support documentation for 

each transaction. Examples of documentation include but are not limited to copies of checks paid 

- 564 -

Item # 25.



 

7 

to vendors, vendor invoices, bills of lading, purchase vouchers, payrolls, bank statements and 

reconciliations, and real property and easement appraisals. Prior to the submittal of any such 

documentation to MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall redact, in accordance with the definition of 

“Protected Personally Identifiable Information” (“Protected PII”) as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, 

all information reflecting an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination 

with any one or more of types of information, including, but not limited to, social security number, 

passport number, credit card numbers, clearances, bank numbers, biometrics, date and place of 

birth, mother's maiden name, criminal, medical and financial records, educational transcripts. This 

does not include PII as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 that is required by law to be disclosed. 

SUBRECIPIENT and any Contracted Parties (as such term is defined in Article 13 of this 

Agreement) are limited to the travel rates of the State of Mississippi, including dining and hotels, 

in place at the time of the expenditure for which reimbursement is sought; and SUBRECIPIENT 

shall audit any such invoice for same, clearly indicating the actual expense and the adjustment, if 

any.    

SUBRECIPIENT certifies that all information provided to MDEQ or its representatives as 

part of the initial risk assessment for this Work is complete and accurate. SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

to submit to and cooperate with MDEQ in any additional risk assessment evaluation and periodic 

audit procedures to ensure adequate financial management of all funds. Further, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall continue to implement any recommendations and/or corrective action plan set forth in the 

report transmitted to SUBRECIPIENT based on the findings of the systems and processes for 

financial management, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein 

in its entirety. 

13. CONTRACTS 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for accountability of funds, compliance with Project 

specifications, and Project management by its contractors. MDEQ shall not bear responsibility for 

any liability caused or incurred by any contractor in performing Work.  MDEQ shall not be deemed 

by virtue of this Agreement to have any contractual obligation to, or relationship with, any of 

SUBRECIPIENT’s contractors, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that, as between MDEQ 

and SUBRECIPIENT, all Work shall be deemed to be the responsibility of, and performed by, 

SUBRECIPIENT. No contractor or other recipient of funds from MDEQ under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be an agent, representative, employee or servant of MDEQ in connection with 

this Agreement. The parties with whom contracts or subaward agreements are entered into by the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall be referred to herein as “Contractor”, “Contracted Party”, or “Contracted 

Parties”. In addition to ensuring that its Contracted Parties follow the applicable terms in this 

Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require all terms and conditions set forth in Attachments A 

and C attached hereto to be included in all agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Parties, and in all agreements between Contracted Parties and Contracted Parties’ 

contractors/sub-contractors. 

14. APPLICABLE LAW 

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the State of Mississippi and applicable federal law excluding, its conflict of laws 

provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State.  

- 565 -

Item # 25.



 

8 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. Authorizing Statutes. Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 

803), as added by section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (Pub. L. No. 117-

2) and the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program Act 

of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).  

B. Implementing Regulations. Subpart A of 31 C.F.R. Part 35 (Coronavirus 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds), as adopted in the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds interim final rule (86 Fed. Reg. 26786, applicable May 17, 2021 

through March 31, 2022) and final rule (87 Fed. Reg. 4338, applicable January 27, 2022 

through the end of the ARP/CSLFRF award term), and other subsequent regulations 

implementing Section 603 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. § 803), as well as MDEQ 

regulations, entitled “Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality Regulations for 

the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure Grant Program.”  

C. Guidance Documents. Applicable guidance documents issued from time-

to-time by the US Department of Treasury and MDEQ, including the currently applicable 

version of the Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds.1 

D. Licenses, Certifications, Permits, Accreditation. SUBRECIPIENT shall 

obtain and keep current any license, certification, permit, or accreditation required by 

federal, state, or local law and shall submit to MDEQ proof of any licensure, certification, 

permit or accreditation upon request. 

15. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of MDEQ to proceed under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of the funds from state, federal, and/or other 

funding sources. If the funds anticipated for the continuing fulfillment of the Agreement are, at 

any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to 

provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material 

alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available 

to MDEQ, MDEQ shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to the 

SUBRECIPIENT, to terminate this Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to 

MDEQ of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice 

of termination. 

16. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not retained a person to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

                                                 
1
 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf.  

- 566 -

Item # 25.



 

9 

17. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES  

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it has not violated, is not violating, and promises that it 

will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of the 

Mississippi Public Procurement Review Board Office of Personal Service Contract Review Rules 

and Regulations and Section 9.105 (Gratuities) of the Mississippi Procurement Manual. 

18. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (“UG”), as adopted by 

the Department of Treasury at 2 C.F.R. Part 1000 and as set forth in the Assistance Listing for 

ARP/CSLFRF (21.027). These requirements dictate how SUBRECIPIENT must administer the 

Subaward and how MDEQ must oversee SUBRECIPIENT. As a condition of receipt of the grant 

funds authorized in this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to watch the video entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview” found 

at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

The applicable UG provisions are as follows: 

● Subpart A, Acronyms and Definitions; 

● Subpart B, General Provisions;  

● Subpart C, Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal 

Awards (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.204, .205, .210, and .213); 

● Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements (except 2 C.F.R. §§ 

200.305(b)(8) and (9), .308, .309, and .320(c)(4)); 

● Subpart E, Cost Principles; 

● Subpart F, Audit Requirements; 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System for Award 

Management); 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation 

Information); and 

● 2 C.F.R. Part 180 (OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide 

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)). 

 

SUBRECIPIENT shall document compliance with UG requirements, including adoption 

and implementation of all required policies and procedures, within thirty (30) days of the execution 

of this Agreement and during all subsequent reviews during the term of the Agreement. It is 

SUBRECIPIENT’s responsibility to comply with all UG requirements. Failure to do so may result 

in termination of the Agreement by MDEQ. 

All real property acquired or improved, and equipment or supplies purchased in whole or 

in part with MCWI Grant Funds and/or LFRF, must be used, insured, managed, and disposed of 

in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.311 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.316. 

- 567 -

Item # 25.



 

10 

19. SUBAWARDS 

If SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by MDEQ to make a Subaward, SUBRECIPIENT must 

include and incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any attachments, in all 

lower tier Subawards. Further, SUBRECIPIENT, who makes a Subaward, must follow and carry 

out all the responsibilities of a Pass-through entity described at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  

SUBRECIPIENT understands that MDEQ is an equal opportunity employer and therefore, 

maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, 

national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made 

unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful, and SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees during the Period of Performance of the Agreement that SUBRECIPIENT will strictly 

adhere to this policy in its employment practices and work performance under this Agreement. 

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with, and all activities under this Agreement shall be subject to, all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended 

or modified. 

SUBRECIPIENT along with any sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, 

transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 

recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 

benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 

regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this  

Agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

comply with the provisions of Attachment D to this Agreement. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement may be deemed or construed in any way to stop, limit, 

or impair MDEQ from exercising or performing any regulatory, legislative, governmental, or other 

powers or functions. 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under ARPA, including the information provided by the State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Final Rule.2   

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Mississippi Municipality and County Water Infrastructure  

Grant Program Act of 2022 (Miss. Code Ann. § 49-2-131).3  

                                                 
2
 https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-01-27/pdf/2022-00292.pdf 

3
 http://billstatus.ls.state.ms.us/documents/2023/pdf/SB/2400-2499/SB2444SG.pdf 

- 568 -

Item # 25.



 

11 

SUBRECIPIENT is required to review and understand the requirements, limitations and 

restrictions placed upon them under the Regulations promulgated by MDEQ.4   

21. STOP WORK ORDER 

A. Order to Stop Work: MDEQ may, by written order to SUBRECIPIENT at 

any time and without notice to any surety, require SUBRECIPIENT to stop all or any part 

of the Work called for by this Agreement. This order shall be for a specified period not 

exceeding ninety (90) days after the order is delivered to SUBRECIPIENT, unless the 

Parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop 

work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an order, SUBRECIPIENT 

shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 

occurrence of costs allocable to the Work covered by the order during the period of work 

stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the 

Parties shall have agreed, MDEQ shall either: 

i. cancel the stop work order; or 

ii. terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in the 

Termination for Default clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this 

Agreement. 

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under 

this clause is canceled at any time during the period specified in the order or if the period 

of the order or any extension thereof expires, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the right to 

resume Work. An appropriate adjustment may be made in the Period of Performance or 

Maximum Amount, or both, and the Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly 

if: 

i. The stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, 

or in SUBRECIPIENT’s cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of 

this Agreement; and 

ii. SUBRECIPIENT provides a written claim for such an adjustment 

within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that 

MDEQ decides that the facts justify such action and any such claim asserted may 

be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the 

Work covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs 

resulting from the stop work order may be allowed by adjustment or otherwise. 

22. E-PAYMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the State of 

Mississippi’s electronic payment and remittance vehicle. MDEQ agrees to make payment in 

                                                 
4
 https://mswaterinfrastructure.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/MCWI-Grant-Program-Regulations-revised-12-16-22.pdf 

- 569 -

Item # 25.



 

12 

accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies,” which 

generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the agency within forty-five (45) days 

of receipt of invoice. Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

23. INTERVENTIONS 

If MDEQ determines that SUBRECIPIENT is not in compliance with this Agreement, 

MDEQ may initiate an intervention, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.208 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.339. 

The degree of SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency will determine the degree 

of intervention. All possible interventions are listed below and will depend on the degree of 

deficiency in SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or compliance deficiency.  

If MDEQ determines that an intervention is warranted, it shall provide written notice to 

SUBRECIPIENT of the intervention within thirty (30) days of the completion of a report review, 

desk review, onsite review, audit review, or procedures engagement review, or as soon as possible 

after MDEQ otherwise learns of a compliance or performance deficiency related to the execution 

of this Agreement. The written notice shall notify SUBRECIPIENT of the following related to the 

intervention:  

(1) The nature of the additional requirements;  

(2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;  

(3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;  

(4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable; and  

(5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.  

MDEQ may impose, but is not limited to, the following interventions on SUBRECIPIENT, 

based on the level of the compliance or performance deficiency that MDEQ determines: 

Level 1 Interventions. These interventions may be required for minor compliance or 

performance issues: 

(1) SUBRECIPIENT addresses specific internal control, documentation, financial 

management, compliance, or performance issues within a specified time period; 

and/or 

(2) More frequent or more thorough reporting by the SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3) More frequent monitoring by MDEQ; and/or 

(4) Required SUBRECIPIENT technical assistance or training. 

Level 2 Interventions. These interventions may be required for more serious compliance 

or performance issues: 

 

(1)  Restrictions on funding payment requests by SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2)  Disallowing payments to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(3)  Requiring repayment for disallowed cost items; and/or 

(4)  Imposing probationary status on SUBRECIPIENT. 

Level 3 Interventions. These interventions may be required for significant and/or 

persistent compliance or performance issues: 

- 570 -

Item # 25.



 

13 

 

(1) Temporary or indefinite funding suspension to SUBRECIPIENT; and/or 

(2) Nonrenewal of funding to SUBRECIPIENT in subsequent year; and/or 

(3) Terminate funding to SUBRECIPIENT in the current year; and/or 

(4) Initiate legal action against SUBRECIPIENT. 

Interventions will remain in place until the underlying performance or compliance 

deficiency is addressed to the sole satisfaction of MDEQ. 

24. E-VERIFICATION 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT represents and certifies that it will ensure its compliance 

with the Mississippi Employment Protection Act of 2008 and will register and participate in the 

status verification system for all newly hired employees. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 71-11-1, et seq. The 

term “employee” as used herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State. 

As used herein, “status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

Immigration Responsibility Act of 1996 that is operated by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify Program, or any other successor electronic 

verification system replacing the E-Verify Program. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain records 

of such compliance. Upon request of the State of Mississippi and after approval of the Social 

Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security, when required, SUBRECIPIENT 

agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. SUBRECIPIENT further represents and 

certifies that any person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility 

requirements of all immigration laws.  

25. TRANSPARENCY 

This Agreement, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is 

subject to the “Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983” and its exceptions. See Miss. Code Ann. 

§§ 25-61-1 et seq. and Miss. Code Ann. § 79-23-1. In addition, this Agreement is subject to the 

provisions of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Miss. Code Ann. §§ 

27-104-151, et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy 

of this executed Agreement may be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s 

independent agency Agreement website for public access at 

https://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information identified by SUBRECIPIENT as trade 

secrets or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor information, or any other 

information which is required to be confidential by state or federal law or outside the applicable 

freedom of information statutes will be redacted. 

26. PAYMODE 

Payments by state agencies using the statewide accounting system shall be made and 

remittance information provided electronically as directed by MDEQ. These payments shall be 

deposited into the bank account of SUBRECIPIENT’s choice. MDEQ may, at its sole discretion, 

require SUBRECIPIENT to submit invoices and supporting documentation electronically at any 

time during the Period of Performance of this Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

- 571 -

Item # 25.



 

14 

agrees that MDEQ is exempt from the payment of taxes. All payments shall be in United States 

currency. 

27. TERMINATION 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

A. Termination For Convenience. 

The MDEQ may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. MDEQ shall give 

written notice of the termination to SUBRECIPIENT specifying the part of the 

Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. 

B. Termination For Default. 

If SUBRECIPIENT refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 

Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 

specified in this Agreement or any extension thereof or otherwise fails to satisfy 

the Agreement provisions or commits any other substantial breach of this 

Agreement, MDEQ may notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of the delay or 

nonperformance, and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in 

writing by MDEQ, MDEQ may terminate SUBRECIPIENT's right to proceed with 

the Agreement or such part of the Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 

failure to properly perform.  

Notwithstanding termination of the Agreement and subject to any directions 

by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 

protect and preserve property in the possession of SUBRECIPIENT in which the 

State has an interest.  

C. Termination Upon Bankruptcy.  

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by MDEQ upon 

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT, if SUBRECIPIENT should become the subject 

of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 

upon the execution by SUBRECIPIENT of an assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors. In the event of such termination, SUBRECIPIENT shall be entitled to 

recover just and equitable compensation for satisfactory Work performed under this 

Agreement, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total Maximum 

Amount. 

28. DISPUTES 

Before pleading to any judicial system at any level, SUBRECIPIENT must exhaust all 

administrative remedies. A written complaint must first be sent to the Executive Director of 

MDEQ. The decision of the Executive Director shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof 

mailed or furnished to SUBRECIPIENT within fourteen (14) days after receipt of information 

- 572 -

Item # 25.



 

15 

requested by MDEQ or the Executive Director. If the decision of the Executive Director does not 

resolve the matter, successive administrative remedies may, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, include 

bringing the complaint before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality pursuant to 

Miss. Code Ann. §§ 49-17-35 and -41. In the alternative, at SUBRECIPIENT’s option, the decision 

of the Executive Director may be deemed the final agency action on the complaint. Appeals from 

the decision of the Executive Director or the Commission shall follow procedures outlined in Miss. 

Code Ann. § 49-17-41. 

29. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACTING 

SUBRECIPIENT shall not assign, contract, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 

or in part without the prior written consent of MDEQ, which MDEQ may, in its sole discretion, 

approve or deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer of its obligations without 

such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by MDEQ of any contract shall be deemed 

in any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of MDEQ in excess of the Maximum 

MCWI Grant Fund amount set forth in this Agreement, nor create any contractual relationship 

between MDEQ and any Contracted Parties. Contracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and to any conditions of approval that MDEQ may deem necessary. Subject to 

the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 

30. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies and acknowledges it is a Mississippi county, municipality or 

public utility, as defined in MCWI regulation, Rule 1.1. E. (17), and that it has LFRF to use as 

match funding for this grant. SUBRECIPIENT further certifies and acknowledges that its entry 

into and performance under this Agreement is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 

financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision 

of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings, either voluntary or 

otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

31. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

SUBRECIPIENT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, and its Contracted 

Parties: 

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or Agreement or Contract under a public transaction; 

C. have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

- 573 -

Item # 25.



 

16 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 31. B. and Article 31. C., above; and  

E.  have not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one 

or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

32. FAILURE TO ENFORCE  

Failure by MDEQ, at any time, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity 

of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of MDEQ to enforce any provision at any time 

in accordance with its terms. 

33. INDEMNIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain responsibility for the Project and agrees to provide 

proper operation and maintenance of all facilities for the life of the Project. SUBRECIPIENT’s 

tort liability, if it is an entity of the State of Mississippi, is determined and controlled in accordance 

with Miss. Code Ann. §§ 11-46-1 et seq., including all defenses and exceptions contained therein.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of changing or altering this liability or of 

eliminating any defense available to the State under statute. 

To the extent allowed by state law, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and MDEQ’s contractors from and against any and all claim, 

demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, including 

attorney's fees or expenses on the part of SUBRECIPIENT, their agents or employees or any other 

parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this Agreement. 

   

34. SUBRECIPIENT STATUS  

SUBRECIPIENT shall, during the entire Period of Performance of this Agreement, be 

construed to be an independent SUBRECIPIENT. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor 

shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship. 

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is qualified to perform the duties to be performed under 

this Agreement and that it has, or will secure, if needed, at its own expense, applicable personnel 

who are qualified to perform the duties required under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 

be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to be employees of 

MDEQ. 

Any person assigned by SUBRECIPIENT to perform the services hereunder shall be an 

employee or independent contractor of SUBRECIPIENT, who shall have the sole right to hire and 

discharge its employees and/or independent contractors under this Agreement.   

- 574 -

Item # 25.



 

17 

SUBRECIPIENT shall pay, when due, all salaries and wages of its employees and accepts 

exclusive responsibility for the payment of federal income tax, state income tax, social security, 

unemployment compensation and any other withholdings that may be required. This provision is 

solely for the benefit of MDEQ, and nothing herein shall be construed to create or impose any 

contractual or agency relationship between MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT’S contractors, 

subcontractors, employees or agents.   

35. INSURANCE 

SUBRECIPIENT and its Contracted Parties agree to and shall maintain insurance that is 

required by applicable state, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, including all attachments, represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

irrespective of whether written or oral. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only 

by a written document executed by MDEQ and SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT 

acknowledges that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all its attachments and has had the 

opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete 

understanding of all rights and obligations herein.  

37. ORAL STATEMENTS 

No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or 

specifications stated in this Agreement. All modifications to the Agreement must be made in 

writing by the MDEQ and agreed to by SUBRECIPIENT. 

38. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided SUBRECIPIENT is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of SUBRECIPIENT, the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of SUBRECIPIENT’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the SUBRECIPIENT’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

SUBRECIPIENT for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this 

Agreement and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action 

arising out of or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) 

year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action 

are finally resolved or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

SUBRECIPIENT is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten-year 

period prescribed in this Article and Article 39 only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

- 575 -

Item # 25.



 

18 

A. SUBRECIPIENT has provided all of the documents described above and in 

the “Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year 

retention period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing 

to MDEQ;  

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to 

this Project is commenced before SUBRECIPIENT provides the records and 

corresponding certification to MDEQ, in which case, SUBRECIPIENT shall retain the 

records until all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. SUBRECIPIENT provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written 

notice before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification.  

39. RIGHT TO AUDIT  

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all financial records, including electronic financial 

records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 

regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall retain these records for a period of ten (10) years after final 

payment. These records shall be made available during the term of the Agreement and the 

subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and audit by MDEQ, the 

Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, including the Office 

of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating to this Agreement or 

an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, 

the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit findings involving 

the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

40. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Notwithstanding any review or inspection by MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, 

and consultants, SUBRECIPIENT shall not be relieved of its responsibility for performance of the 

Work or the submission of reports as expressly set forth in this Agreement solely by virtue of such 

inspection or review of the Work. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to SUBRECIPIENT’s performance of the Work. 

41. SEVERABILITY  

If any part of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement that can be given effect 

without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the provisions hereof are severable. 

In such event, the Parties shall amend the Agreement as necessary to reflect the original intent of 

the Parties and to bring any invalid or unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

- 576 -

Item # 25.



 

19 

42. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION  

SUBRECIPIENT shall give the MDEQ prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, 

and prompt notice of any claim made against SUBRECIPIENT by any entity that may result in 

litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 

43. CERTIFICATIONS 

SUBRECIPIENT’s execution of this Agreement shall be deemed as acknowledgement, 

guarantee and certification by SUBRECIPIENT of the following: 

 

A.  SUBRECIPIENT has sufficient LFRF in its possession that it will use to 

match MCWI Grant Funds. 

B. SUBRECIPIENT will follow and abide by all ARPA guidelines, guidance, 

rules, regulations, and other criteria, as may be amended from time to time, by the U.S. 

Treasury regarding the use of monies under this Agreement.  

C. As required in Attachment A, Article (1) a., SUBRECIPIENT’s Authorized 

Representative, or his/her designee has watched the video on the MDEQ 

https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled “American Rescue Plan Act 

State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Procurement Overview.”  

 

D. All of SUBRECIPIENT’s LFRF used as MCWI matching funds, as well as 

MCWI Grant Funds received by SUBRECIPIENT, have been or will be used for the 

Project detailed in this Agreement.  

E. Upon request by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT will provide an 

Intergovernmental Review Certification as detailed in the MCWI Regulations. 

F. SUBRECIPIENT will obligate all MCWI Grant Funds and LFRF funds 

used for MCWI matching funds by 11:59 p.m. on August 30, 2024. 

G.  If SUBRECIPIENT does not complete the Project by December 31, 2026, 

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees to complete the Project with other funds. 

44. WAIVER 

No delay or omission by either Party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power, or 

remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by Agreement, at law, or in equity shall constitute an 

acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by 

any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either Party to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing by the Party making said waiver. No 

waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this Agreement will void, waive, or change 

any other term or condition. No waiver by one Party to this Agreement of a default by the other 

Party will imply, be construed as or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

- 577 -

Item # 25.



 

20 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH MISS. CODE ANN. § 31-5-37 

If applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that Contracted Parties and bidders solicited 

for contract awards pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements of Miss. Code. Ann. 

§ 31-5-37. SUBRECIPIENT shall require all bidders for any contract of Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) or more procured or to be procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 

submit a certification with their bid that said bidder will comply with the provisions of Miss. Code. 

Ann. § 31-5-37. In addition, within seven (7) days of any such contract award procured or to be 

procured with funds received pursuant to this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall require the 

Contracted Party to submit to both SUBRECIPIENT and the Mississippi Department of 

Employment Security (“MDES”) an employment plan which conforms to the requirements 

contained in Miss. Code. Ann. § 31-5-37(2). 

From the date written notice of any such contract award is received and until ten (10) 

business days after the receipt of the employment plan by MDES, the Contracted Party and any 

subcontractors shall not hire any personnel to fill vacant positions for the project except residents 

of the State of Mississippi who are to be verified by MDES and/or those qualified individuals who 

are submitted by MDES. However, the Contracting Party or contractor is authorized to employ 

Mississippi residents to begin work immediately if such persons are verified by MDES after 

employment by the Contracting Party or contractor. SUBRECIPIENT shall vacate the contract 

award in the event the Contracting Party fails to comply with the provisions of Miss. Code Ann. § 

31-5-37. 

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify MDEQ in writing of any potential conflict of 

interest resulting from the representation of or service to other clients or otherwise affecting this 

Agreement in any way. If any such conflict occurs before it is discovered, SUBRECIPIENT shall 

notify MDEQ of such conflict within five (5) working days of such discovery. If such conflict 

cannot be resolved to MDEQ’s satisfaction, MDEQ reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

per the “Termination for Convenience” clause. 

47. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto 

and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

48. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 

any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever 

under or by reason of this Agreement. 

49. EVALUATION 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

- 578 -

Item # 25.



 

21 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

50. VENUE 

Venue for the resolution of any dispute, according to Article 28 of this Agreement, shall 

be before the Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality if pursuing an administrative 

appeal, and venue for any subsequent litigation shall be in the Chancery Court of Hinds County, 

Mississippi. 

51. HEADINGS 

The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation 

of this Agreement.  

52. NOTICES 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices, requests, consents, claims, 

demands, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when 

received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); 

(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of document(s) (with confirmation of transmission) if 

sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after normal 

business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be 

specified in a notice given in accordance with this subsection):  

If to MDEQ: Attention: 

MCWI Contract Administration 

515 East Amite Street 

P.O. Box 2249 

Jackson, MS 39201 

E-mail: MCWIdocuments@mdeq.ms.gov 

If to SUBRECIPIENT: Attention:  

Mayor Todd Jordan 

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo, MS  38804 

Phone:  (662) 841-6513 

E-mail:  todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov 

- 579 -

Item # 25.



 

22 

 

53. COUNTERPARTS 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 

but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. A signed copy of 

this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

- 580 -

Item # 25.



 

23 

For the faithful performance and consideration provided under the terms of this Agreement, 

the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized 

representatives. 

 

MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Chris Wells      

Executive Director 

 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, INC. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Todd Jordan 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

_____________________________________ 

Todd Jordan 

Printed Name      

 

_____________________________________ 

Title 

 

       

Date 

 

  

- 581 -

Item # 25.



 

24 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT NAME, SCOPE OF WORK AND PROJECT TIMELINE AND 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT NAME 

Ridgeway Drive Pipe Replacement 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Project shall be defined as eligible activities funded in whole or in part under this 

Agreement as follows: 

 

The Project includes removal of drainage pipe, installation of HDPE, 

removal and replacement of curb inlets and steel grate inlets, and associated 

appurtenances. 

 

The general Scope of Work to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT is limited to that which 

was submitted in the MCWI Application Portal and approved for funding in accordance with the 

MCWI Program Regulations.  SUBRECIPIENT hereby agrees that no additional eligible scope 

may be added to this Scope of Work without the express written consent of MDEQ. The Scope of 

Work eligible for reimbursement is limited to that identified as eligible by MDEQ and further 

described by plans, specifications, contract documents, and contract change orders approved as 

eligible by MDEQ.   

 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND REQUIREMENTS 

(1)  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to the following schedule.  

  

a. Within 10 days of execution of this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT’s 

Authorized Representative, or his/her designee shall watch the video on the 

MDEQ https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com web-page entitled 

“American Rescue Plan Act State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 

Procurement Overview.” The web-page will track compliance with this 

requirement;  

  

b. Within 15 days of execution of this Agreement, submit a complete set of 

plans, specifications, contract documents on each construction contract, and 

all applicable permits and agency approvals, if not already submitted to 

MDEQ;  

 

c. No later than 45 days after advertisement for construction bids on each 

construction contract, receive bids; 

  

- 582 -

Item # 25.



 

25 

d. No later than 60 days after receipt of bids on each construction contract, 

execute construction contract; 

  

e. No later than 15 days after execution of construction contract, submit the 

entire procurement file (including but not limited to the request for 

proposals, evidence of publication, MBE/WBE documentation, all received 

bids, evaluation and selection documentation, executed construction 

contracts, and professional services contracts);  

  

f. No later than 60 days after execution of each construction contract, execute 

and submit a copy of the notice to proceed;  

  

g. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 25% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

h. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 50% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

i. No later than 5 business days after the estimated completion of 75% of 

construction, submit a notice to MDEQ of such milestone;  

  

j. No later than 5 business days after completion of each construction contract, 

notify MDEQ of construction completion;  

  

k. No later than 30 days after the contract completion date on each 

construction contract, submit all change orders which include time 

extensions, or a request and justification for delaying MDEQ’s final 

construction observation;  

  

l.  Within 45 days of Project completion, but no later than September 30, 2026, 

whichever is earlier, unless an extension of this date is specifically 

authorized by MDEQ, SUBRECIPIENT must submit the following:  Final 

Report, as listed in Article 11, the engineer's certification of compliance 

with plans, specifications, and contract documents; final professional 

services contract amendments, if any; and all other administrative forms and 

documents required by the Agreement.  

 

(2)  To the extent any documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article 

(1) above were submitted with the MCWI Grant Application through the Application 

Portal, the documents do not need to be resubmitted. 

 

(3)  All documents required to be submitted in Attachment A, Article (1) above, shall 

be uploaded to the Documents Portal at https://www.mswaterinfrastructure.com. 

  

- 583 -

Item # 25.



 

26 

ATTACHMENT B 

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

An evaluation for the assessment of uncontrolled risks of the SUBRECIPIENT’s systems 

and processes for financial management was performed as of part of the initial subaward process 

by MDEQ, acting on behalf of the State of Mississippi, as administrator of this Subaward 

Agreement. MDEQ requests the SUBRECIPIENT provide the following information to MDEQ as 

part of observations made during the evaluation. MDEQ reserves the right to re-evaluate the 

assessment of uncontrolled risks upon subsequently identified facts: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide MDEQ with a copy of their annual audited 

financial statements within 60 days of the report release date throughout the Period 

of Performance. 

2. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any significant changes 

made to the SUBRECIPIENT’s current policies and procedures that would impact 

financial management systems and processes, specifically those communicated as 

part of the evaluation, from which the current residual risk levels were derived. 

3. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to promptly notify MDEQ of any level of fraud or abuse 

discovered within the organization without regard to materiality that is related to 

the operation of the Project, as well as other pervasive deficiencies identified for 

grant management practices from any source, both external and internal, throughout 

the program performance period. 

4. If deficiencies, significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses are reported to 

the SUBRECIPIENT, as part of any assurance, attestation, or monitoring 

engagement during the program performance period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to 

provide its response(s) and/or corrective action plan(s) to MDEQ so that prompt 

action can be taken by MDEQ to mitigate any elevated level of uncontrolled risk 

that could potentially impact MDEQ’s or the SUBRECIPIENT’s ability to comply 

with Federal Award and/or subaward requirements. 

5. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that MDEQ has the right to perform monitoring 

procedures as deemed appropriate by MDEQ based on the assessed risk of 

noncompliance.   

  

- 584 -

Item # 25.



 

27 

ATTACHMENT C 

  

 SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR CONTRACTED PARTIES 

 

1. AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS AGREEMENT 

The Contracted Party certifies that (a) it is either a 1) state agency, 2) a validly organized 

business that is authorized to do business in the state of Mississippi, 3) a nongovernmental 

organization, or 4) a political subdivision of the state of Mississippi with valid authority to enter 

into this agreement and; (b) entry into and performance under this agreement is not restricted or 

prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or other agreement of any kind; and (c) 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that there are no existing 

legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform 

its obligations under this agreement. 

2. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor/Contracted Parties certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it: 

A. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 

agency or any political subdivision or agency of the State of Mississippi; 

B. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a 

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 

(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

C. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 

destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

D. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses 

enumerated in Article 2.B. and Article 2.C., above; and,  

E. has not, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

This agreement is subject to 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the extent allowed by state law, Contracted Party agrees to indemnify and save, release 

and hold harmless the State of Mississippi, the Commission on Environmental Quality, MDEQ, 

all of their employees and officers, and the Department's contractors from and against any and all 

- 585 -

Item # 25.



 

28 

claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, injury, suit, judgment, debt and cost, 

including attorney's fees or expenses on the part of any Contracted Party, their agents or employees 

or any other parties arising out of or incident to, any and all Work under the terms of this 

Agreement.   

4. RELATIONSHIP STATUS  

The Contracted Party acknowledges and agrees that MDEQ is not a party, in any manner 

whatsoever, to any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the construction contractor(s), 

engineer(s), attorney(s), equipment supplier(s), contractor(s), or between any other parties of any 

kind whatsoever (hereinafter collectively referred to as “vendor”). The SUBRECIPIENT and 

Contracted Party also acknowledge and agree that any benefit to vendors contracting with the 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contracted Parties arising from or associated with this Agreement is strictly 

incidental and all such vendors are not and are not intended to be considered as third-party 

beneficiaries under any agreement between MDEQ and the SUBRECIPIENT.  

Upon execution of any contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party in regard 

to the project, MDEQ does not assume any authorities, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under 

such contract. The SUBRECIPIENT and Contracted Party shall not have any authority to bind or 

otherwise obligate MDEQ, directly or indirectly, under any contract or agreement between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT, Contracted Party and its vendors 

acknowledge and agree that any action taken by MDEQ in its role of grantor, or in its separate and 

distinct role as regulator shall not in any way change or alter its position as that of grantor.   

MDEQ does not have any authority, duty, responsibility, or liability in contract claims or 

dispute identification, negotiation, resolution, or any other actions regarding contract claims under 

the contract(s) between the SUBRECIPIENT and any other party. The SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party acknowledge and agree that MDEQ is not obligated to review, comment on, 

approve, or discuss the merits of any contract claims presented by or to any party.  Any MDEQ 

reviews, approvals, observations, presence at meetings, written communications, verbal 

communications or other actions are not to be interpreted as addressing the merits of any claims, 

nor are they to be construed as interpreting the contract between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

Contracted Party or any other parties. 

5. ACCESS TO RECORDS  

Provided Contracted Party is given reasonable advance written notice and such inspection 

is made during normal business hours of Contracted Party, then the Government Accountability 

Office, MDEQ, the State or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 

access to any of Contracted Party’s books, documents, papers, and other records which are 

maintained or produced as a result of the Project for the purpose of making audits, investigations, 

examinations, excerpts, transcriptions, and copies of such documents. This right also includes 

timely and reasonable access to the Contracted Party’s personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. All records related to this Agreement shall be retained by 

Contracted Party for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment is made under this Agreement 

and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other action arising out of 

or related in any way to this Project is commenced before the end of the ten (10) year period, the 

- 586 -

Item # 25.



 

29 

records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are finally resolved 

or until the end of the ten (10) year period, whichever is later. 

Contracted Party is not required to retain the above-mentioned records for the ten (10) year 

period prescribed in this Section and the “Right to Audit” provision only if all of the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

A. Contracted Party has provided all of the documents described above and in the 

“Right to Audit” provision to MDEQ prior to the expiration of the ten (10) year retention 

period and a certification stating the same is simultaneously provided in writing to MDEQ; 

B. No audit, litigation or other action arising out of or related in any way to this Project 

is commenced before Contracted Party provides the records and corresponding 

certification to MDEQ, in which case, Contracted Party shall retain the records until all 

issues arising out of the action are finally resolved; and 

C. Contracted Party provides MDEQ a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice 

before providing the above-mentioned records and corresponding certification. 

6. RECORD RETENTION AND RIGHT TO AUDIT  

The Contracted Party shall maintain and retain books, documents, papers, financial records 

and other records, including electronic records, as may be prescribed by the MDEQ or by 

applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. Contracted Party shall retain these records 

for a period of ten (10) years after final payment. These records shall be made available during the 

term of the Agreement and the subsequent ten (10) year period for examination, transcription, and 

audit by MDEQ, the Mississippi State Auditor’s Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies, 

including the Office of Inspector General. If any litigation, claim, investigation, or audit relating 

to this Agreement or an activity funded under the Agreement is started before the expiration of the 

ten (10) year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, investigations, or audit 

findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

7. RIGHT TO INSPECT WORK; SITE ACCESS 

MDEQ and their representatives, invitees, and consultants shall have access and the right 

to conduct announced and unannounced onsite and offsite physical visits to inspect all Work 

hereunder. Upon request by MDEQ, Contracted Party shall provide MDEQ and its representatives, 

invitees, and consultants with the opportunity to participate in site inspections, meetings, and/or 

teleconferences, as appropriate, related to the performance of the Work. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Contracted Party covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 

interest direct or indirect in the Project that is the subject to this Agreement or any parcels therein, 

where applicable, or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of his services hereunder. The Contracted Party further covenants that, in the 

performance of this agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

- 587 -

Item # 25.



 

30 

The Contracted Party agrees to establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using 

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private 

gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have a family, business, or other 

tie.  

9. COOPERATION AND EVALUATION  

The Contracted Party agrees to assist and cooperate with the MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives in the monitoring of the Project(s) to which the Agreement relates, and to provide 

in form and manner approved by MDEQ such monitoring reports, progress reports, and the like as 

may be required and to provide such reports at the times specified. 

Further, the Contracted Party agrees to cooperate with MDEQ or its duly designated 

representatives by providing timely responses to all reasonable requests for information to assist 

in evaluation of the accomplishments of the Project and the agreement for a period of ten (10) 

years after the date on which the Final Reports are provided. 

  

- 588 -

Item # 25.



 

31 

ATTACHMENT D 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE 

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the 

Treasury, SUBRECIPIENT provides the assurances stated herein. The federal financial assistance 

may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to SUBRECIPIENT’s 

beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal training, a 

loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, 

or programs that provide direct benefits.  

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available 

through the Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that SUBRECIPIENT may 

request in the future.  

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances 

apply to all of the operations of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any 

portion of SUBRECIPIENT’s program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner 

prescribed above.  

1.  SUBRECIPIENT ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the 

benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national 

origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury Title VI 

regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive orders such as Executive Order 13166, 

directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance documents.  

2.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access 

to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally 

assisted programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited 

English proficiency (LEP). SUBRECIPIENT understands that denying a person access to its 

programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination 

prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the Treasury’s 

implementing regulations. Accordingly, SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate reasonable steps, or 

comply with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have 

meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. SUBRECIPIENT understands and 

agrees that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 

interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 

SUBRECIPIENT’s programs, services, and activities.  

- 589 -

Item # 25.



 

32 

3.  SUBRECIPIENT agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons 

when SUBRECIPIENT develops applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and 

activities. As a resource, the Department of the Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 

6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps to provide meaningful access for LEP 

persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov.  

4.  SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances 

constitutes a condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon 

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in 

which such assistance is provided.  

 5.  SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is 

provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the 

Treasury, this assurance obligates SUBRECIPIENT, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the 

transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 

the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of 

similar services or benefits. If any personal property is provided, this assurance obligates 

SUBRECIPIENT for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  

6.  SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review 

activities by the Department of the Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may 

include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement 

agreements that may result from these actions. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with information 

requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting requirements.  

7.  SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the 

Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and 

limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing 

regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the 

complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. SUBRECIPIENT also must inform the 

Department of the Treasury if SUBRECIPIENT has received no complaints under Title VI.  

8.  SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or 

court’s findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, 

including any voluntary compliance or other agreements between the SUBRECIPIENT and the 

administrative agency that made the finding. If SUBRECIPIENT settles a case or matter alleging 

such discrimination, SUBRECIPIENT must provide documentation of the settlement. If 

SUBRECIPIENT has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state.  

 

- 590 -

Item # 25.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Debbie Brangenberg, TRA Project Director 

DATE July 25, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF TRA MINUTES OF JANUARY 19 AND MAY 30, 2023 

DB 
  

 

Request:  

Review//Accept TRA Minutes of January 19 and May 30,  2023 

 

- 591 -

Item # 26.



- 592 -

Item # 26.



- 593 -

Item # 26.



- 594 -

Item # 26.



- 595 -

Item # 26.



- 596 -

Item # 26.



- 597 -

Item # 26.



- 598 -

Item # 26.



- 599 -

Item # 26.



- 600 -

Item # 26.



- 601 -

Item # 26.



- 602 -

Item # 26.



- 603 -

Item # 26.



- 604 -

Item # 26.



- 605 -

Item # 26.



- 606 -

Item # 26.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Dennis Bonds, Interim Director of Development Services  

DATE July 26, 2023  

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW / APPROVE PROPERTIES FOR LOT MOWING DRB 
  

 

Request: DRB 

Review and approve properties on final lot mowing list. Preliminary list is attached. Final 

list will be provided prior to the meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 607 -

Item # 27.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 08/01/2023 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

1.  44454 113E0614400 813 
SHUMACOLA 
TRL 

COHEA CECIL J 813 SHUMACOLA TRAIL TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

2.   44455 101H0115002 823 
SHUMACOLA 
TRL 

MAH JEANINE E 3408 DELL GLADE DRIVE MEMPHIS, TN 38111 SB 

3.   44458 089J3118902 910 ALLEN ST RILEY BILLY E 2605 WHITE ROCK DR BUFORD, GA 30519 DS 

4.   44459 089J3121200 905 ALLEN ST SCOTT SAUNDRA 
J 

386 ROAD 1600 BELDEN, MS 38826 DS 

5.   44466 077E2616600 2546 
ARLINGTON DR 

THOMPSON 
MARTES A & 
DIAMOND 

2546 ARLINGTON ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

6.   44469 077E2616800 2558 
ARLINGTON DR 

DANIEL ALICE V 2558 ARLINGTON ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

7.   44470 077E2618100 2654 
ARLINGTON DR 

SMITH JOANNA 2654 ARLINGTON ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

8.   44471 078S2802904 437 JONES DR REYNOLDS 
JOHNNY R JR & 
KRISTIN 

437 JONES DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

9.   44472 078S2802906 399 JONES DR CLARKE JOHN 339 JONES DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

10.   44475 077F2615600 708 VASSAR DR COLATRELLA 
LAURA L 

708 VASSAR DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

11.   44476 077F2617100 704 JAMES DR MICHAEL 
CHARLES & MARY 
S 

704 JAMES DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

12.   44480 105H1509100 3257 WILLIE 
MOORE RD 

TUCKER 
LEUNDRA & 
DAMITA 

106 CR RD 1046 TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

- 608 -

Item # 27.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

13.  44481 105H1509300 3305 WILLIE 
MOORE RD 

BERRY WILLIE JR 
& JANNIE H 

3305 WILLIE MOORE RD TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

14.   44482 106S1404900 3330 WILLIE 
MOORE RD 

OWENS LULA 
MAE 

3330 WILLIE MOORE ROAD TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

15.   44483 105H1502400 3302 ROBERT 
KENNEDY DR 

TUCKER ROSIE W 3302 ROBERT KENNEDY TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

16.   44484 105H1502000 3360 ROBERT 
KENNEDY DR 

ANDERSON 
GINCIE M 

3360 ROBERT KENNEDY DR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

17.   44485 105H1501100 3351 BEASLEY 
DR 

C & C RENTALS & 
HOME REPAIR 
LLC 

704 TURNER DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

18.   44500 106A1404000 2948 MOORE 
AVE 

DUKES ELIJAH E & 
RENEE 

881 CR 115 NEW ALBANY, MS 38652 RS 

19.   44502 105D1504100 2972 MOORE 
AVE 

HUBBARD ESSIE 2972 MOORE AVE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

20.   44504 105D1504400 2987 MOORE 
AVE 

COBB OCELO 2987 MOORE AVE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

21.   44509 105D1504700 3031 MOORE 
AVE 

CYCLONE 
ASSETS/BMO 
HARRIS 

P O BOX 1414 MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55480 RS 

22.   44514 105D1505100 3091 MOORE 
AVE 

DANCER MCCOY 1103 FILLMORE DR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

23.   44515 075Q2200200 3793 FAIR OAKS 
DR 

BOYLES ELLEN R 
& CHASE 
MICHAEL 

3793 FAIR OAKS DR BELDEN, MS 38826 TP 

24.   44516 105D1506300 3106 BEASLEY 
DR 

MOORE 
OPHELENE (LE) 

P O BOX 2968 TUPELO, MS 38803 RS 

- 609 -

Item # 27.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

25.  44518 105H1505100 3362 MEADOW 
DR 

DANCY LORINE K 3362 MEADOW DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

26.   44522 105H1503200 3347 MEADOW 
DR 

BROWN 
TRAVARES 

3392 CRAIGMONT CIR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

27.   44524 105D1503500 3064 MOORE 
AVE 

RICHARDSON 
MEGAN 

P O BOX 87 RED BANKS, MS 38661 RS 

28.   44528 089J3117100 434 N PARK ST JELG 
ENTERPRISES LLC 

3702 OLD OAK RD CORINTH, MS 38834 SB 

29.   44533 075R2207900 3758 FAIR OAKS 
DR 

BRINKLEY 
SHIRLEY A 

3758 FAIR OAKS DRIVE BELDEN, MS 38826 TP 

30.   44534 077E2604900 912 BIRCH ST HARRIS EBONY 912 BIRCH ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

31.   44535 077M3603700 1151 W 
JACKSON ST 

WHITMON 
LANDON C & 
ABBY P 

1151 W JACKSON ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

32.   44536 112A0404000 526 CANAL ST GERSH CARLA R 
REVOCABLE 
LIVING TRUS 

25121 DANABIRCH DANA PANT, CA 92629 RS 

33.   44537 112A0402700 412 CANAL ST MERRITT 
SUNNYA 

PO BOX 1694 VERONA, MS 38878 RS 

34.   44543 088N3302900 312 CANAL ST FRESH 
PROPERTIES LLC 

593 SOUTHGATE RD SACRAMENTO, CA 95815 RS 

35.   44545 088N3302200 206 CANAL ST PRATT JENNIFER 1165 HWY 47 HOUSTON, MS 38851 RS 

36.   44547 088N3307802 132 WAYSIDE 
DR 

PAYNE LORETTA 
& PATRICK 
HARRIS 

132 WAYSIDE TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

- 610 -

Item # 27.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

37.  44548 088N3307801 130 WAYSIDE 
DR 

SCRUGGS 
MELVIN T & 
DEAN WEBB & 
BRANDON M 

1104 CR 811 SALTILLO, MS 38866 RS 

38.   44550 072N0901600 4742 ENDVILLE 
RD 

TURNER NEAL 60 CRUMP ROAD BELDEN, MS 38826 TP 

39.   44552 075R2200200 3744 
LANSDOWNE 
DR 

SOUTHERN LIFE 
PROPERTIES LLC 

4005 WHITE SPRINGS ROAD FULTON, MS 38843 TP 

40.   44553 075R2204800 3576 FAIR OAKS 
DR 

JM HARRISON 
PROPERTIES LLC 

4098 LINCOLN CIRCLE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

41.   44555 101H0120600 1017 TAFT ST MITCHELL EVA 1017 TAFT ST TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

42.   44556 077K3505001 2100-2200 
HOLMES ST 

TRI-MAX LLC 1185 QUAIL CREEK RD TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

43.   44557 085N2101200 1641 OAKVIEW 
CIR 

ABDELAZIZ SAFA 
A AND HUSSEIN 
TALAT A 

8317 PINE SPRINGS ROAD MERIDIAN, MS 39305 DS 

44.   44559 077K3505000 2400 HOLMES 
ST UNIT 1-4 

HOLMES 
RENTALS LLC 

P O BOX 3098 TUPELO, MS 38803 TP 

45.   44560 077K3516700 102 PINEHILL 
DR 

RUBB-JEE II LLC 122 LONG HORN DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

46.   44561 077K3500102 2404 HOLMES 
ST 

DEW CHARLES W 
& JANICE G 

2404 HOLMES ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

47.   44563 105D1500400 2931 BEASLEY 
DR 

HUBBARD JAMES 1605 HOMEBERG LN MADISON, WI 53716 RS 

48.   44566 077K3500104 2412 HOLMES 
ST 

NI JASON & 
FALGUNI WAHID 
SK 

2412 HOLMES ST TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

- 611 -

Item # 27.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

49.  44569 077J3505600 2037 WINFIELD 
DR 

ALLREDGE DORIS 2037 WINFIELD DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

50.   44570 112B0402300 1805 BRIAR 
RIDGE RD 

KELLY 
WOODROW & 
LOUISE 

1807 BRIAR RIDGE RD TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

51.   44573 112C0310300 2260 CAMELOT 
CIR 

WALKER 
DONDRA & 
STEPHANIE 

2260 CAMELOT CR TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

52.   44575 077K3516500 2201 HOLMES 
ST 

WILSON AUBREIL 
& CHARLES 

2201 HOLMES TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

53.   44576 077F2615000 705 VASSAR DR SINGH NIRBHAI 122 LONGHORN DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

54.   44578 077F2611500 1406 LAMBARD 
DR 

THORNTON 
STEPHANIE APRIL 

P O BOX 1531 TUPELO, MS 38802 TP 

55.   44579 077F2608000 2368 
PATTERSON DR 

SCRUGGS 
MELVIN T & 
STEVE 
WHITEHEAD 

1230 CR 811 SALTILLO, MS 38866 TP 

56.   44580 077F2601500 1416 BRISTOW 
DR 

MORRIS 
CHETIQUA M & 
ORLAND C 

1416 W BRISTOW DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

57.   44581 077F2601400 1414 W 
BRISTOW DR 

POOLE HARRISON 
& SCHWAKE 
AMBER N'COLE 

1414 W BRISTOW DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

58.   44582 077F2600900 1404 W 
BRISTOW DR 

FEDERAL 
NATIONAL 
MORTGAGE 
ASSOCIATION 

13455 NOEL ROAD SUITE 600 TP 

59.   44583 077F2611100 1403 BRISTOW 
DR 

SHAW RICHARD 
RUSSELL 

1403 W BRISTOW TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

60.   44590 077G2517300 1313 LAMBARD 
DR 

MORGAN 
SHIRLEY 

1313 LAMBARD DRIVE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

- 612 -

Item # 27.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

61.  44592 077G2517000 1307 LAMBARD 
DR 

VERNER PATRICK 
& JESSICA M 

1307 LAMBARD DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

62.   44593 077G2516100 1224 LAMBARD 
DR 

DRAGOVITS 
PERRISH A & 
LEXER L WALLACE 

639 WALNUT ST TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

63.   44594 077G2514102 807 GEORGE 
AVE 

MICHAEL CHASE 
& MARLEY 
MAHARREY 

807 GEORGE AVE TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

64.   44595 077G2513400 1003 E 
BRISTOW DR 

SPEARMAN JOEY 
RENTALS LLC 

173 CR 13 TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

65.   44596 077G2512100 1020 
MARQUETTE 

ROBERSON 
TORLANDO & 
SANTANA 

1020 MARQUETTE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

66.   44598 112C0311400 2259 CAMELOT 
CIR 

SOUTHERN LIFE 
PROPERTIES LLC 

4005 WHITE SPRINGS ROAD FULTON, MS 38843 RS 

67.   44599 112C0309800 860 MCNEECE 
ST 

SEPULVEDA 
ALONSO & 
GUERRERO 
SONIA 

860 MCNEECE ST TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

68.   44600 112C0309700 824 MCNEECE 
ST 

DEARING 
TAWANA 

824 MCNEESE ST TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

69.   44602 077F2615300 702 VASSAR DR GLAMOUR 
ENTERPRISES LLC 

1896 SWAN CIRCLE TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

70.   44604 076Q2401400 1804 TRACE 
AVE 

WFH PROPERTIES 
LLC 

1208 MAXWELL TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

71.   44605 088Q3405204 350 MCNEECE 
ST 

DOZIERJOYCE 
TACKETT (LE) 

350 MCNEECE TUPELO, MS 38802 RS 

72.   44606 075Q2201400 2072 COLONIAL 
ESTATES RD 

ODLE JACKSON 
ALEXANDER 

2072 COLONIAL ESTATES RD BELDEN, MS 38826 DS 

- 613 -

Item # 27.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

73.  44607 077C2502800 1606 TRACE 
AVE 

WILSON BOBBY L 604 RACOVE DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

74.   44610 112A0411100 1012 WILSON 
ST 

COONTAIL 
INVESTMENTS 
LLC 

3900 ESSEX LANE, SUITE 340 HOUSTON, TX 77027 RS 

75.   44615 112A0407800 512 LAKE ST GRAB THE MAP 
LLC 

3195 MCCULLOUGH BLVD BELDEN, MS 38826 RS 

76.   44616 088N3312100 1004 KINGSLEY 
DR 

RAY OTIS 179 MC 121 TEXARKANA, AR 71854 RS 

77.   44617 089J3101500 503 MAGNOLIA 
DR 

HENSON SLEEP 
RELIEF INC 

P O 728 TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

78.   44618 089J3103000 MAGNOLIA ST CHURCH 
INSPIRATIONAL 
COMMUNITY 
BAPTIST 

405 CLAYTON AVE TUPELO, MS 38804 TP 

79.   44619 077M3610100 204 RANKIN 
BLVD 

IRVING SUSAN 
DIANNE 

204 RANKIN BLVD TUPELO, MS 38804 SB 

80.   44620 077M3610000 206 RANKIN 
BLVD 

LOVE RUSSELL B 206 RANKIN BLVD TUPELO, MS 38804 SB 

81.   44621 101G0111000 2020 
LAWNDALE DR 

PERKINS 
MICHAEL & 
ELIZABETH A 

2020 LAWNDALE DR TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

82.   44622 077E2617000 2570 
ARLINGTON DR 

FOUNTAIN 
PROPERTIES LLC 

64 ASHLEY STREET TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

83.   44623 089J3131900 318 RILEY ST SOPER ANDREW 
GRAHAM 

404 AIR PARK ROAD TUPELO, MS 38801 SB 

84.   44624 089J3132000 325 RILEY ST FUTURE HOPE 
RENTALS LLC 

777 CR 251 SALTILLO, MS 38866 SB 

- 614 -

Item # 27.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

85.  44625 077E2616900 2564 
ARLINGTON DR 

BROWN RYAN 
ALEXANDER & 
KIMBERLY R 

2564 ARLINGTON DR TUPELO, MS 38801 TP 

86.          

87.          

88.          

89.          

90.          

91.          

92.          

93.          

94.          

95.          

96.          

 

- 615 -

Item # 27.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Dennis Bonds, Interim Director of Development Services  

DATE July 26, 2023  

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE LIENS FOR LOT MOWING DRB 
  

 

Request: DRB 

Adjudicating cost and assessing lien against real property under Miss. Code Ann. 1972, § 

21-19-11 located at:  

 

Address                                               Parcel Number 

 

25 Harvester’s Square                    079V-32-131-00 

120 South Highland                         077Q-36-058-00 

505 West Barnes Street                   089F-30-047-00 

709 Lar-Eli-Do                                 077F-26-179-00 

1815 Martin Hill Drive                     088Q-34-008-00 

3091 Moore Avenue                         105D-15-051-00 

3424 Walsh Road                              075S-16-001-02 

5475 Turning Leaf Cove                   079V-32-112-00 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 616 -

Item # 28.



- 617 -

Item # 28.



- 618 -

Item # 28.



- 619 -

Item # 28.



- 620 -

Item # 28.



- 621 -

Item # 28.



- 622 -

Item # 28.



- 623 -

Item # 28.



- 624 -

Item # 28.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chuck Williams, Director of Public Works 

DATE 07/24/2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL VAN BUREN AVE DRAINAGE 

IMPROVEMENTS BID NO. 2023-032PW JULY 2023 - CW 
  

 

Request:  

Request for bid approval for the Van Buren Ave Drainage Improvements Project  

Bid No. 2023-032PW 

 

Five Bidders responded. 

 

We recommend the bid be awarded to the following for the lowest and best bid –  

 

Townes Construction $373,513.00 

 

 

 

- 625 -

Item # 29.



 
 
 

 
 

 

@dabbscorp   
 OFFICE 662.840.4162 1005 N. Eason Boulevard 

  MOBILE 601.927.4012 Tupelo, MS 38804 

 

 
July 25, 2023 

 
 

Mr. Chuck Williams 
Director, Public Works Dept. 
604 Crossover Road 
Tupelo, Mississippi 38801 
 
 
REFERENCE:  RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD OF CONTRACT  
   VAN BUREN AVE DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
   BID NO. 2023-032PW 
      
Dear Mr. Williams: 
 
I am pleased to submit to you, along with the Mayor and City Council, our conclusions and recommendations regarding the 
award of the construction contract for the referenced project.  Bids were opened at Tupelo City Hall on Friday, July 21, 2023 at 
10:00 AM local time.   
 
This project includes the removal and replacement of existing drainage pipe and related infrastructure along Van Buren Avenue.  
As represented on the attached tabulation of bids, five bids were received for this project that ranged from $373,513 - $697,895 
for this project.  The low bid was from Townes Construction.  The bid was reviewed based on the bidding criteria established 
for the Project and it appears that the proper proposal documentation was submitted as required by the Contract Documents.  
Townes Construction provided an UEI No. GH9PJDWHZQB3 from Sam.gov. 
 
Thus, it is our recommendation that the City award this contract in the amount of $373,513 to Townes Construction for the 
referenced project and authorize the Mayor to execute the contracts per the conditions set forth in the Contact Documents for 
this project.  We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and to be involved with this project.   Please let us know 
should have any questions or require additional information. 
 
Sincerely,  
DABBS CORPORATION       

      

Dustin D. Dabbs, PE       
President         

 
C: Mr. Don Lewis, COO, City of Tupelo 
 Ms. Kim Hanna, CFO, City of Tupelo 
 Mr. Ben Logan, City Attorney, City of Tupelo 
 Mr. Dennis Bonds, PE, Director, Dev. Services 
 Mr. Casey Rogers, ICM 
 Ms. Jamye Baker, ICM 
  

  
Attachment: Bid Tabulation 

- 626 -

Item # 29.



BID# 2023-032PW Van Buren Ave. Drainage Improvements 

Name CR BID BOND Signed ADD Bid Amount Non-Collusion 

PHILLIPS 00229-MC FIDELITY PRES YES $ 697,895.00 YES 

PAUL SMITHEY 04370-MC GRAY PRES YES $ 392,605.93 YES 

HODGES 13510-MC GRAY PRES YES $ 481,578.00 YES 

TOWNES 07443-MC GRANITE PRES YES $ 373,513.00 YES 

EN SCOR 12345-MC TRAVELERS OWNER YES $ 436,415.00 YES 

- 627 -

Item # 29.



Minute Entry Sign Up Sheet 

Date: 7/21/2023 

Time: 10:00 

Bid # 2023-032PW Department: PW 

Project: 

Attandance 

1? ( IA Hv1.l\JUA/ 

------

Van Buren Ave. Drainage 

Company 

\t..w'\ 

- 628 -

Item # 29.



BASE BID

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $26,315.00 26,315.00$   $15,975.00 15,975.00$   $8,000.00 8,000.00$     $56,500.00 56,500.00$   $115,000.00 115,000.00$ 

2 CLEARING & GRUBBING LS 1 $9,815.00 9,815.00$     $5,325.00 5,325.00$     $10,000.00 10,000.00$   $6,000.00 6,000.00$     $30,500.00 30,500.00$   

3 REMOVE & REPLACE STREET SIGN EA 1 $900.00 900.00$        $1,065.00 1,065.00$     $500.00 500.00$        $522.50 522.50$        $500.00 500.00$        

4 REMOVE & REPLACE ELECTRICAL LS 1 $800.00 800.00$        $1,917.00 1,917.00$     $14,280.00 14,280.00$   $4,500.00 4,500.00$     $5,000.00 5,000.00$     

5 REMOVAL OF CHAIN LINK FENCE LF 50 $20.00 1,000.00$     $31.95 1,597.50$     $10.00 500.00$        $17.50 875.00$        $10.00 500.00$        

6 REMOVAL OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT SY 200 $20.00 4,000.00$     $42.60 8,520.00$     $5.00 1,000.00$     $30.00 6,000.00$     $50.00 10,000.00$   

7 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE DRIVEWAY SY 15 $20.00 300.00$        $117.15 1,757.25$     $10.00 150.00$        $30.00 450.00$        $50.00 750.00$        

8 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER LF 345 $12.00 4,140.00$     $10.65 3,674.25$     $10.00 3,450.00$     $23.00 7,935.00$     $30.00 10,350.00$   

9 REMOVAL OF EXISTING GRATE INLET EA 1 $2,000.00 2,000.00$     $2,130.00 2,130.00$     $1,000.00 1,000.00$     $2,250.00 2,250.00$     $2,000.00 2,000.00$     

10 REMOVAL OF EXISTING CURB INLET EA 5 $2,000.00 10,000.00$   $2,130.00 10,650.00$   $1,000.00 5,000.00$     $2,250.00 11,250.00$   $2,000.00 10,000.00$   

11 REMOVAL OF 36" RCP LF 32 $30.00 960.00$        $53.25 1,704.00$     $40.00 1,280.00$     $35.00 1,120.00$     $50.00 1,600.00$     

12 REMOVAL OF 48" CMP LF 602 $15.00 9,030.00$     $31.95 19,233.90$   $40.00 24,080.00$   $35.00 21,070.00$   $50.00 30,100.00$   

13 CHAIN LINK FENCE LF 50 $40.00 2,000.00$     $63.90 3,195.00$     $30.00 1,500.00$     $31.50 1,575.00$     $50.00 2,500.00$     

14 ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE TONS 25 $400.00 10,000.00$   $330.15 8,253.75$     $250.00 6,250.00$     $350.00 8,750.00$     $350.00 8,750.00$     

15 ASPHALT BASE COURSE TONS 35 $400.00 14,000.00$   $330.15 11,555.25$   $275.00 9,625.00$     $340.00 11,900.00$   $350.00 12,250.00$   

16 CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 15 $75.00 1,125.00$     $148.04 2,220.60$     $200.00 3,000.00$     $168.00 2,520.00$     $300.00 4,500.00$     

17 SAWCUTTING LF 150 $15.00 2,250.00$     $10.65 1,597.50$     $10.00 1,500.00$     $11.50 1,725.00$     $10.00 1,500.00$     

18 CRUSHED STONE SUB-BASE MATERIAL TONS 130 $75.00 9,750.00$     $85.20 11,076.00$   $80.00 10,400.00$   $61.00 7,930.00$     $105.00 13,650.00$   

19 BORROW EXCAVATION CY 50 $40.00 2,000.00$     $26.63 1,331.50$     $40.00 2,000.00$     $32.00 1,600.00$     $100.00 5,000.00$     

20 36" RCP DRAINAGE PIPE LF 32 $125.00 4,000.00$     $143.04 4,577.28$     $155.00 4,960.00$     $166.00 5,312.00$     $430.00 13,760.00$   

21 58" X 36" RCAP DRAINAGE PIPE LF 612 $244.00 149,328.00$ $295.16 180,637.92$ $320.00 195,840.00$ $303.00 185,436.00$ $430.00 263,160.00$ 

22 58" X 36" RCAP FLARED END SECTION EA 1 $2,500.00 2,500.00$     $3,509.45 3,509.45$     $4,700.00 4,700.00$     $2,700.00 2,700.00$     $5,500.00 5,500.00$     

23 R.C. GRATE INLET W/3'X3' CAST IRON GRATE EA 1 $5,800.00 5,800.00$     $4,706.93 4,706.93$     $12,000.00 12,000.00$   $11,770.00 11,770.00$   $9,400.00 9,400.00$     

24 R.C. CURB INLET, TYPE SS-2 EA 5 $8,250.00 41,250.00$   $7,410.22 37,051.10$   $12,800.00 64,000.00$   $12,715.00 63,575.00$   $9,400.00 47,000.00$   

25 14" STEEL CASING RETROFIT LF 10 $250.00 2,500.00$     $226.85 2,268.50$     $200.00 2,000.00$     $150.00 1,500.00$     $1,000.00 10,000.00$   

26 CONCRETE, CLASS B CY 5 $2,000.00 10,000.00$   $1,065.00 5,325.00$     $1,000.00 5,000.00$     $2,400.00 12,000.00$   $2,500.00 12,500.00$   

27 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER LF 350 $65.00 22,750.00$   $50.06 17,521.00$   $40.00 14,000.00$   $34.75 12,162.50$   $57.50 20,125.00$   

28 CONNECT TO EXISTING PIPES EA 2 $2,000.00 4,000.00$     $1,597.50 3,195.00$     $1,000.00 2,000.00$     $2,000.00 4,000.00$     $2,500.00 5,000.00$     

29 SOLID SODDING SY 1200 $6.00 7,200.00$     $9.32 11,184.00$   $7.00 8,400.00$     $7.50 9,000.00$     $10.00 12,000.00$   

30 EROSION CONTROL LS 1 $5,500.00 5,500.00$     $3,195.00 3,195.00$     $5,000.00 5,000.00$     $3,225.00 3,225.00$     $5,000.00 5,000.00$     

31 LANDSCAPING LS 1 $1,800.00 1,800.00$     $3,195.00 3,195.00$     $6,000.00 6,000.00$     $6,825.00 6,825.00$     $10,000.00 10,000.00$   

32 TEMPORARY POWER POLE SUPPORT LS 1 $3,000.00 3,000.00$     $1,863.75 1,863.75$     $2,500.00 2,500.00$     $2,875.00 2,875.00$     $10,000.00 10,000.00$   

33 TEMPORARY FENCING LS 1 $3,500.00 3,500.00$     $1,597.50 1,597.50$     $6,500.00 6,500.00$     $6,725.00 6,725.00$     $10,000.00 10,000.00$   

GRAND TOTAL

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI

BID TABULATION - BID NO. 2023-032PW

ITEM                   
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT

UNIT                                          
COST

PHILLIPS           
CONTRACTING

UNIT                                          
COST

BID DATE: 07/21/2023

TOTAL                                           
COST

TOTAL                                           
COST

TOWNES.        
CONSTRUCTION

QNTY.

VAN BUREN DRAINAGE IMRPROVEMENTS

697,895.00$    

UNIT                                          
COST

TOTAL                                           
COST

SMITHEY         
CONTRUCTION ENSCOR

UNIT                                          
COST

TOTAL                                           
COST

392,605.93$    373,513.00$    

HODGES           
CONSTRUCTION

UNIT                                          
COST

TOTAL                                           
COST

481,578.00$    436,415.00$    
- 629 -

Item # 29.



- 630 -

Item # 29.



- 631 -

Item # 29.



- 632 -

Item # 29.



- 633 -

Item # 29.



- 634 -

Item # 29.



- 635 -

Item # 29.



- 636 -

Item # 29.



- 637 -

Item # 29.



- 638 -

Item # 29.



Paul Smithey Construction Company, lnc.
PO Box 357
Belden, MS 38826

Certificate of Responsibility Number
04370-MC

Bid To: Tupelo Public Works Department
City of Tupelo
TL East Troy Street
Tupelo, MS 38804

Bid For: Van Buren Ave. Drainage lmprovements
Bid No. 2023-A3Z9W

- 639 -

Item # 29.



FID gs;us

KNOW ALL MEN BY T}IESE PRESENTS:

That Construction Co., lnc.

{Name of Contractor}

t hereinaft+rcalled,,principafi, and

lndividual)

'trereinaftercailed

!!5urety",

arc heid and firmly bound unlo TUpfLO. MS,'hereinsfter inlled "Ollt H[Ru in the penal sum of !i!
afTqtal.Bld'forthepaymentnfwhich sumwelland trulyto be made,webindourselv*s, srrcces$ors,

and a$signs, joinily and seuerally, firmly hy these presents. Slgned, this the 2tpJ , day of Jurl

2023. The conditioriof'the above obligation is such that whereai the principai has subrni6ed to
TUPELO, hllS a certain BlD, attached hereto and hereby made a part thereof p- enter into a contract

in writing, for the construction of,

,VATI BURII\I AVE. DfiAIf{AGE IMPROVTMENTS"

NOW, THEREFORE,

{r} tfsaid BtD shall be relected, or,

{b} f said BID shall he accepted and the prinqipal shall exeante and detiu. er a csntract on
the Cq$tra{.tf,orm qs attache.d hereto {properly Sar}tptEted in accqrdancew,t.h ruLt
BID) and shall furnish BONDS forhls fuithful perfiormance of said contftr1 and for
the payment of all persons perForming labor or furnishing materi,alr in connection
herewrth, and shall in all other respe$s perform the agreement created by the
acceptance of said BlD, then thls obligation shall be voi{, otherwise the same shall
remai* in effec$ It being express{y understood and qBreed that the liability of the
$urety ior any and all ciairns heresndef shall In iro evenq dxceed the pen*[ arnount
af this obltga$on as herein stated.

The Surety, for value recelved, hereby stipulates and agrees that the ohligations ofsaid Surety and
Its BOND shall be in no raray impaired or affected by any ertension of the tirrre wtthin which the
owNEE may accept such BID; and said Surety does hereby walve nstice of any such ertension.

E-1

FrO Box 357. BBlden, MS gS826

{Address of Contractor}

- 640 -

Item # 29.



NN WITNESS WHERE OF, the Principai and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and
such of them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and ihese
present to be signed by their officers, the day and year first set forth above.

{1.s.)

Departrnent's

in the state where the project is located.

,,i.* END OF SECT|0N '&**

Resjdent P.geni

E-7

- 641 -

Item # 29.



Bond Numben Bid Bond

THE GRAY INSURANCE COMPAI\TY
TIIE GRAY CASUALTY & SI]RETY COMPANY

Harris Madden Powell Stallings and Brown
07/?0/202308:56 29398080201tj

CullcnS. Piske
Preoident

The Grcycasrslty & Surfy Conpar.ry

U,"f$urw-t Nt4^r ut/L'

Leiglt Anne llenican
Notary Pnblic,Pari*hof Orhans State ofhuhi$a
MyCrmuissiou is forlt&

GEI\IERAL POWER OF ATTORIYEY

Princlprl: Paul Smithey Constnrctioa Co,, trnc.

Projeetl Yan Buren Ave. Drainage ImprovemenB

KNow ALL BYTIIESB PRESENTS, 1I{AT The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casxalty & surety Compahy, corporations duly
organized aud exisring under the laws oflouisiana, and havingihcir principal offices in Metairie, Louisians, do hereby Bake, con$tituio, andappoint: Jostph Mrddcn III, Richatd L. Powtll, Rlchara L]Poweil Jr,, urk f. Hs-rris, Kei*, W nrri.n, iooa Jo Irunter, Cooper \tPermenter, Daniel B. Ilickens, end RIe stallings of Memphls, Tennerree Jolntly and strreralty on tehalioieach of the Compades named
above its kue and lawful Attomey(s)-in-Fac! to make, erecutq seal and detiver, for-and on its behatraad .i rtr Jr"o, bonds, or other writingsobligatory io the nah[c ofa bond, as suretf, contracls of suretyship ae are or may be required or permitted by law, regulation, contmct or otherwiso,provided that no bond or undertaking or conEact ofsurctyshipexecuted rnrdcr this aurhority shalt erceed the amount of$2j,000,000,00.
This Power of Attornoy is granted and-is signed by facsimite under and by the authority of rhe following Resolutions adopted by the Boards ofDirectors ofboth rhe Gray Insuraoce company aad rhe oray Casuatty g surety Comfiany at meetingsiuly called and held on the 26s day ofJuno,2003.

"REsoLvED, that the Prcsident, Executive Vice President any Vice President, or the Secrerary be and each or any ofthem haeby ls authorized toexecute.a power gflttomey quoliSingrhe attorneynamed in thc given Power ofAttomey to excoute on behalf ofthe company bonds,unde*akings, and al1 contsacts ofsurety, and that each or any ofthem is hereby authorized to *test to the execution orsucn rower oiAuornen andto attach the scal ofthe Company; and it is

TITRTHER RESoLYED, that the signature ofsuch offrcers and the seal of the Company.may bo afiixed to any suoh power of Attomey or to a$yctrtificate relating rhereto by facsimile, aad aay such Power of Atomey or certi{icae dring such fecsiftile sigirature or racsimile seal shall bebinding uporr the cornpany now and in the fui*re when so affxed witi, ,.g.raio *yG"a, undsrtaking or conhact ofeurety to which it is attached.
IN wllNEss WHBRE0F the Gray Insurance company and The oray Casualty & surety Company have caused thelr officiol seals to be hereinto
affixed, and lhese presents to be signed by their authorized olEcers this 4s day ofNovcmter, 2022.

ffi",
%;ddZ.€fr,

Mic&aatT. Gray
Presidcat

The Gray Inswurcr Company

State ofLouisiam
sf:

?arish oflailfsr&on
on this 4e day ofNoveubu, zolz' $tore ry+ a Notuy Pubtic, poruoully appeared Michml T. Gray, president of The Gray lusrnrnce
company, aad odlcn S. Pi$kci Prffiid€nt of1he Gmy Casualty & Surety Corirpany, perso_natly Inroum to *, tulogdrrry $orn, askowkdge6thatthey sigred theabovePowscf Attome,yandmxea&cieak ort* co*iadJ*r'rs orns6;$ o{,;d 

"o*rir*i*?aoia 
hsburnerrrro bethevohutrry act and deed, ofiheir companies.

L€lgh Anne Henioar
NotarypubJic

NolarytDNa,92653
Orleans paAsl. louisL-ne

I' tdark $- ldanguo, $ec'rchry of Thc Gray fusurarrce Ccrapury, do hereby cutify that tte abwr md forgoiag is a trrrc and contct copy of rPqrer-gf AttoTey_given by the companieg wlictr Ia still ir nrii rorcc ant emct fN $,rr$tEss wEERE{ffibavc set my ha*d and
afrxed tht teals of thc Company lfti5 lllt day of .11gy , SEi

{tuh{tftuf#,
,,,'.!:Lii"i:;i",.-.

I, Leigh Anne Henican, $ecrs?ry ofThe Gray Casucfiy & Sruetyf-ompany , do hcrsb;r cedlff rhat the above and forgoiqg ]s;t-tt*Jc6.*j
copv of a Powe of ^[ttornev givea by the companies, rrhioh is itilt ;n 

-tirf 
rqcu ano ehtxt. tft wmgsss wffidr;E; iJ}}il;,-'

and affxed ihe scals ofthe Comgrany &is tlrt - day of ,i4 , &13

T"#.Su'w.'a 
binhr LW-

- 642 -

Item # 29.



PROPOSAL

Proposal ot ?ail SnitL"*{ ( p"r|tfi^linw Co, fu, (hereinafter cailed ,'BIDDER,,), 
organized

and existing under the laws of the State of {vt, i SS, EEi ff ) doing business as a
(corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or individual) to TUpELo, Mg {hereinafter called

"oWNER"). ln compliance with your advertisement for Bids, BIDDER, hereby proposes to perform all

WORK for construction of

,VAN BUREN AVE. DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS"

in strict accordance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, within the time set forth herein, and at the
prices stated below. By submission of the BlD, each BIDDER certifies, and in the case of a joint BID

each party thereto certifies as to his own organization, that this BID has been developed

independently, without consultation, communication or agreement as to any matter relating to
this BID with any other BTDDER or with any competitor.

BIDDER hereby agrees to commence WORK under this contract on or before a date to be specified

in a written "NOTlcE TO PROCEED" and to fully complete the Projectwithin 45 consecutive calendar

days thereafter. BIDDER further agrees to pay as liquidated damages, the sum of 5300 for each

consecutive calendar day thereafter as provided for elser,yhere in these CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGES receipt of the following ADDENDA:

NUMBER:

NUMBER:

NUMBER:

NUMBER:

4 I D^rE:_-_J:!J-:_23

DATE:

DATE:.

DATE:

Each BIDDER is responsible for inspecting the site and for reading and being thoroughly familiar with

the CONTRACT D0CUMENTS. The failure or omission of any BTDDER to do any of the foregoing shall

in no way relieve any BIDDER from any obligation in respect to this bid.

D-1
- 643 -

Item # 29.



BIDDER understands that the quantities mentioned below are approximate only and are subject to

either increase or decrease, and hereby proposes to perform any increased or decreased quantities

of work at the Unit Price Bid.

ln accordance with the requirements of the Plans, Specifications and Contract Documents, BIDDER

proposes to furnish all necessary materials, equipment, labor, tools and other means of construction

and to construct the Project in accordance with the Contract Documents within the specified

Contract Time for the following Unit Prices specified.

BIDDER further agrees to execute the contract agreement as bound herein within ten (10) days after

receipt of contract forms from the OWNER.

BIDDER agrees to pay as liquidated damages the amount provided herein for each consecutive

calendar day after the Contract completion date specified in a written "NOTICE TO PROCEED,, that

he fails to complete the work unless the Contract Time is extended by a written Change Order.

BIDDER also proposes to execute a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond, as shown in the

Specifications, each in an amount of not less than one hundred percent l,:ilc,f/ol of the total of the

Base Bid. These Bonds shall not only serve to guarantee the completion of the work on the BIDDERS

part, but also to guarantee the excellence of both workmanship and materials untilthe work is finally

accepted.

BIDDER encloses a Bid Bond or Certified Check for 5% of Base Bid Amount . DOLLARS

(s ) and hereby agree that in case offailure to execute the Contract and

furnish the required Bonds within (10) days after the Receipt of Contract Forms, the amount of this

Certified Check or Bid Bond will be forfeited to the OWNER, as liquidated damages arising out of his

failure to execute the Conffact as proposed.

It is understood that in case BIDDER is awarded the work, the Certified Check or Bid Bond submitted

as Bid security will be returned as stipulated in the Specifications.

D-2
- 644 -

Item # 29.



Further, the BIDDER agrees to abide by the requirements under Executive Order No. 11246, as

amended, including specifically the provision of the Equal Opportunity Clause set forth in the Federal

Requirements, if applicable.

The low BIDDER shall supply the names and address of major MATERTAL SUPpLIERS AND

SUBCONTRAfiORS when required to do so by the OWNER.

lnspection trips for prospective BIDDERS will be coordinated thru OWNER prior to submission of

proposal.

BIDDER agrees to perform all the work described in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS for the following

unit prices or base bid amount: SEE PAGE D-4 FOR BID |TEMS.

NOTES:

Unit price amounts are to be shown in figures where indicated. Where a discrepancy
in the unit price and the extension of any items occurs, the unit price will govern.

unit prices shall include all labor, materials, bonding, shoring, removal, overhead,
profit, insurance, etc., to cover the finished work of the several kinds called for.

Any erasure, change or alteration of any kind must be initialed by the BIDDER.

Bid prices shall include sales tax and all other applicable taxes and fees.

5. Any item of work not specified on the proposal as a separate pay item or
indicated as an absorbed cost in a pay item but which is incidental to completion of
the work shall be considered as an absorbed cost with full compensation included in
the unit price bid for the particular item involved.

OWNER reserves the right to award any combination of base and additive alternate
bids {if any) it deems advantageous and in the event that all specified bid item units
are lump sum (LS), the owNER reserves the right to delete any such item or
combination of such items from the project. The OWNER further reserves the right
to delete any item or items desired from the Bid Schedule after the Contract has
been awarded. Any deletions, if any made, shall be by change order and BIDDER
hereby agrees to accept such Change Orders.

2.

3.

4.

6.

D-3
- 645 -

Item # 29.



BID FORM- BID NO.2O2}O32PW
CITY OF TUPELO, WSSISSIPPI

VAN BUREN DRAINAGE IMPROVf,,MENTS
O7 fi1 NO23 - ADDENDUM NO. 1

ITtrM
NO. DESCRTmToN fl aNtr QNTY.

UNIT
COST

TOTAL
COST

I MOBILIZATION LS I l,g 4 7 s"n /6q?s00
? cLEAMNq,&.qRUrBrNG LS 53e$ 00 € 3e6- ao
3 REMOVE & REPLACE STREET SIGN EA I l, obs.oo l, 0L6 n
4 REMOVE & REPI-ACE ELECTNCAL I S l,4t?.tto l,1t7- oo
5 REMOVAL OF CHAIN LINK FENCE t-F

.r:.......85.14{1y.1}.1,.-o.i.4$lfl4lJ,pA\,'EMENT sy

-s0

200

1,6?-?.so
t/4.b0 8.Sz0.oo

7 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE DRIVEWAY llL t€ 1,757.2€
,- { BEMOVAL Q!'CqNCRETE CURB & GUTTER LF 345 /0, LE 3-L7r 2€

9 REMOVAI OF EXISTING GRATE INLET F 4.13o oo 4, lSa uo
IO REMOVAL OF EX1STING CURB INI-ET F,A 5 2, 130.00 ) o, b,go. oa
ll

12

REMOV:\L OF,16" ltCP

I{EMOVAL OF 4II'CMP

LF

LF

32

..9.0.?...

io

53-ts L?or:o o
i,I q_{ lq.),t3.q/1
13.?0

-

3. tQaoo
].+ ASPHAI T SII'RF,A''F 

'OIIRSF 33o.ts *.2,5J-79
15 ASPI1ALT BASE COURSE TONS 15 330. ts I I ,ssaag
16 CONCRETE DzuVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 15 lYg-o,t A)A0.Lo
17 SA\4CUTTING TF .l 50 ll*r 1,517. so
I8 CRUSHED STONE SUB-BASE MATI]R]AL ]'ONS

19 BORROWEXCAVAT{ON CY

130

t.33t. so
20 36" RCP DRAINAGE PIPF, l 1) I 43.0Y +.s?1.29

- X 36- RCAP DRAINAGE PIPE I,F 6t2 eq€1b 190. 037.12
^_??- .- i1::aj0]BC_4I IIARED END sECrroN EA 3.5o9.+s 3.5 Dq, +d
_2-1.^,*-gr!:cB4-!-.E IN!-ET wi'3'X3'cASr rRoN GRATE, pER PLANS EA *'l ab.% ?,7 o L. ?s

21 R.C, CURB INLTT, TYPE SS.2 EA

.2)......1.:1],.q.LE-I!..qASING-.RE rRol"tr Lr

5

lo

2.tt0.22
22/r.9,9 2 2LL*so

l.0l5.oo ,f 325 oo
)1 (]ONCRETE CLT{B& GUTTER IF 350 50.01, l7.sy. oo

- ?E_ __qpu{Ecr ro_Exrsrr\g-gPEs EA 2 1.5 qt. * 3. 14 5.ao
29,_-_..!.Q!-lD SQDDINC Sy 1 200 1.3e i ll t{?. oo
30 EROSION CONTROL

3I LANDSCAPING

LS

I,S

I

1

3, lqs" oa

3 14.r, oo
_,_l?.-_.._I.E\4pOB4Rr1 POWER POLE SUPPORT LS l. I6L7r i 1,9 L3-7s
3.] TEMPORARY FENCING

TOT'AL

J fE qz.ss : l.Sql.rb
qq g Ln,cq

D-4a.

t5

?5

ll,0?le. oo

37.0st. t0

5

3 l45oo
3 )4s oo

I

t

- 646 -

Item # 29.



BID FORM- BID NO.2O23-O32PW
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSPPI

YAN BUREN DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS
OlIfiNO*.ADDENDUMNO. 

1

IN ACCORDANL-E WIIH'I}IE PI]RI,ISHED BiD NOTICF, CENFRAL COM)ITIONS AND INTOR]VIATION PRO\IDED BY TI{ECITY FOR THE REFERENCED BID, T}{E T]NDLRSIGNI]D DOES HEREBY AGREE TO FURMSH IHE DEFINED MATERIAT,S,st'"PLIEs AND sERvlcEs ro }lE CITY oF rLipELo, MISSISSIPPT FoR TIIE pRrcES AS spECtrtED HEREr_\. BIDDERACRT,ES IO SPF('IFIED PRICES TO B}-] PROVIDEDED TO TH}i CITY UNTTI- THE CLOSEOLIT OF TTIE PROJE(']"

(SEAL)
IF tsY CORH)RATIO\

FP{Len, ' z tnat,

- 647 -

Item # 29.



cqRPoRATE CERTTFTCATE

{To be executed if BIDDER is a Corporation)

t, /1-q Q arif Ran&te certit/ that I am the Secretary of the Corporation named as

coNTRAcToR in the foregoing Proposal; tnat b)esle/ l/atsow who signed said

Proposal on behalf of the CONTRACTOR, was then _ ?fcsilt,* of said Corporation;

that said Proposal was duly signed for and in behalf of said Corporation by authority of its governing

body and is within the scope of its corporate powers.

Name:

Title: ,5eet'd{Zn

sien"tur., 

k-ryi/a2

{coRPoRATE SEAL)

D-5
- 648 -

Item # 29.



NON-COLLUSTON AFFf pAVIT

{TO BE EXECUTED tN DUPLTCATE)

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

C0UNTY OF Le*

t Lilesl*{ /{e/sn*
(name of person signing affidavit)

individually, and in my capacity as ?rril Ld- _
(title)

6 rnat?aul'gnilhvcost"to.ffiidder on the 'vAN BUREN AVE. DRATNAGE tMpROvEMENTs'
for Tupelo, MS, has n6t either directly or indirectly entered into any agreemen! participated in any
collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with
this contract; nor have any of its officers, partners, employees or principal owners.

(b) further, that neither said legal entity nor any of its directors, officers, partners, principal owners
or managerial employees are currently debarred from bidding on public contracts by the State of
Mississippi or any of its agencies; or by one or more of the other states or any of their agencies; or
by the Federal t ofthe u States of America or any of their agencies.

Signature

Title

(name of tirrh, partnership, limited liability company, or corporation.)
being duly sworn, on oath do depose and say as follows:

D-9

of

(sEAL)

Sworn before methis iltd"vof f,rrlr .2023.

Notary Public

expires ma.y 3or)r,L/

FAILURE TO PROPERLY SIGN AND NOTARIZE THIS
DISQUALIFYTHE BID.

,$:#ffSh"&,
a ..'f '\s'1 :
Ur i+-,^,"o, "l:g|P i

- 649 -

Item # 29.



of

NON.COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT
(TO BE EXECUTED tN DUPLTCATE)

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

COUNTYOF I eP

being duly sworn, on oath do depose and say as follows:

(a) Thatfu)filh+&,,tl,ro,ffzBidder on the,vAN BUREN AVE. DRATNAGE tMpRovEMENTS,,
for Tupelo, MS has riot either directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any
collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with
this contract; nor have any of its officers, partners, employees or principal owners.

(b) further, that neither said legal entity nor any of its directors, officers, partners, principal owners
or managerial employees are currently debarred from bidding on public contracts by the State of
Mississippi or any of its agencies; or by one or more of the other states or any of their agencies; or

States of America or any of their agencies.

(sEAL)

sworn before me thisf,-c6 av ot {wV ,zozz. *q}''rlii$$;3,,,,/ .'q a'....:":..1'..1.,'e

NotaryPub,ic $:fl=%k.%1
My commiss-ion expires N\atl ?o, ^ +t i' '...'-";mffi ; i
N.TE: FAILURE To PR.PERLY 

'IGN 
AND N.TARIZE THI' 

^,,',1,#MT:-=:.:{JDISQUALIFYTHE BtD. ";,',,?,,1,.9_9.r".J

END OF SECTION

D-10

(name of person signing affidavit)

individually, and in mycapacity * /f.AJ",f 

-

(title)

pa rtnership, li m ited liability compa ny, or corporation^)

by the Federal goverlment

signatur4/tu4

- 650 -

Item # 29.



- 651 -

Item # 29.



- 652 -

Item # 29.



- 653 -

Item # 29.



- 654 -

Item # 29.



- 655 -

Item # 29.



- 656 -

Item # 29.



- 657 -

Item # 29.



- 658 -

Item # 29.



- 659 -

Item # 29.



- 660 -

Item # 29.



- 661 -

Item # 29.



- 662 -

Item # 29.



- 663 -

Item # 29.



- 664 -

Item # 29.



- 665 -

Item # 29.



- 666 -

Item # 29.



- 667 -

Item # 29.



- 668 -

Item # 29.



- 669 -

Item # 29.



- 670 -

Item # 29.



- 671 -

Item # 29.



- 672 -

Item # 29.



- 673 -

Item # 29.



- 674 -

Item # 29.



- 675 -

Item # 29.



- 676 -

Item # 29.



- 677 -

Item # 29.



- 678 -

Item # 29.



- 679 -

Item # 29.



- 680 -

Item # 29.



- 681 -

Item # 29.



- 682 -

Item # 29.



- 683 -

Item # 29.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chuck Williams – Director / Public Works 

DATE July 21, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BID APPROVAL FOR 6 MONTH SUPPLY HOT MIX 

2023-031PW JULY 2023 - CW 
  

 

Request:  

Requesting bid approval for the 6 Month Supply Hot Mix Bid  

 

Bid No. 2023-031PW 

 

We had one bidder respond. 

 

APAC – MS 

 

Hot Bituminous Pavement Surface Mix – 110.00 / YD 

Hot Bituminous Pavement Binder Mix – 100.00 / YD 

 

We request to award the bid to the sole bidder.  

 

 

 

- 684 -

Item # 30.



Minute Entry Sign Up Sheet 

Date: 7/20/2023 

Time: 10:00 

Bid # 2023-031PW Department: PW 
-----

Project: Hot Mix 6 Month Suppy 

Company 

- 685 -

Item # 30.



BID# 2023-031PW Hot M ix 6 Month Suppy 

Name CR BID BOND Signed ADD Bid Amount 

APAC $ 110.00 SURFACE MIX 

APAC $ 100.00 BINDER MIX 

- 686 -

Item # 30.



BID FORM 

HOT MIX ASPHALT 
6-MONTH SUPPLY BID 

BID # 2023-031 PW 

The undersigned proposes to provide materials which meet the specifications provided. The 
undersigned certifies that the minimum specifications, terms and conditions contained in this 
BID have been considered and understood. By submitting a proposal, I/We do certify that the 
commodities offered do meet the specifications contained in this Invitation to Bid. 

Specifications Unit Price 
Item 1 : Hot Bituminous Pavement Surface Mix - Pickup by City 

.$1110. oa 
Item 2: Hot Bituminous Pavement Surface Mix - Delivered) .,._)I* 
Item 3: Hot Bituminous Pavement Binder Mix - Pickup by City 

bf /00. o o 
Item 4: Hot Bituminous Pavement Binder Mix - Delivered J'//~ 

BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGES receipt of the following ADDENDA: 

NUMBER:----------DATE: ---------- -
NUMBER: DATE: ___________ _ 

NUMBER: DATE: - - - --------

BIDDER INFORMATION: 

Company Name: ~\f~c..- M ~ 'JO.es.. 

Com~~R~re~n~ti~: ~&~A-~-~-7~~-~-~-'-'-~~--------------
Title: Si;kJ 

Business Address: 

Street: /01 1( \.!t=V(h< sf Dr. 

City: Pear I State: f/;JS-

Signature of Bidder: ~ ,)!~ 
Date: ?-l-ZCJ.,23 

CITY OF TUPELO- HOT MIX- 6 MONTH SUPPLY 5 

- 687 -

Item # 30.



ADVERTISEMENT FOR PROPOSALS   
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the City of Tupelo, Mississippi will receive bids for: 
 

HOT MIX ASPHALT 
6-MONTH SUPPLY BID 

Bid # 2023-031PW 
 

Until 10:00 o’clock A.M. local time on July 20, 2023 
 
 
Bids can be submitted via sealed bid at the Purchasing Office, City Hall 1st Floor, 71 East 
Troy Street, Tupelo, Mississippi, 38804 or electronically at www.tupelomsbids.com.  Bid 
Documents and Specifications can be viewed and obtained online at 
www.tupelomsbids.com. 
 
Any questions regarding electronic bidding or access to bid documents should be directed 
to PH Bidding Group at 662-407-0193.   
 
Award will be made to the lowest and best bidder.  The Mayor and City Council reserve 
the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any and all informalities. 
 
BY ORDER OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUPELO, 
MISSISSIPPI. 
  
        Traci Dillard 
        Purchasing Clerk 
 
 
Publishing Dates: June 20, 2023  
   June 27, 2023 

- 688 -

Item # 30.

http://www.tupelomsbids.com/
http://www.tupelomsbids.com/


 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kevan Kirkpatrick, Director Cadence Bank Arena  

DATE July 20, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CADENCE BANK ARENA MINUTES 

OF JUNE 19, 2023 KK 
  

 

Request:  

PLEASE REVIEW AND ACCEPT MINUTES OF JUNE 19, 2023  

 

- 689 -

Item # 31.



- 690 -

Item # 31.



- 691 -

Item # 31.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Ben Logan, City Attorney 

DATE July 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF RESOLUTION FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT 

THE RESOLUTION ADOPTED ON JUNE 20, 2023, WAS DULY 

PUBLISHED AS REQUIRED BY LAW; THAT NO SUFFICIENT PROTEST 

DESCRIBED IN SAID RESOLUTION HAS BEEN FILED BY THE 

QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE CITY; AND AUTHORIZING THE 

ISSUANCE OF SAID BONDS AND/OR BOND. 
  

 

Request:  

Attached resolution - “no protest resolution” – is the next step in the issuance of general 

obligation bonds. The resolution achieves the following: 

 

Finds and determines bond intent resolution of July 20, 2023 was duly published as required by 

law. 

 

Finds and determines no sufficient protest has been filed by the qualified electors of the city. 

 

Authorizes the issuance of bonds and/or bond. 

 

- 692 -

Item # 32.



 

The Mayor and the City Council of the City of Tupelo, Mississippi (the "Governing 

Body"), acting for and on behalf of the City of Tupelo, Mississippi (the "City") took up for 

consideration the matter of providing financing for certain capital improvements of the City, and 

after a discussion of the subject matter, the following resolution was presented for consideration: 

RESOLUTION FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT THE 

RESOLUTION ADOPTED ON JUNE 20, 2023, WAS DULY PUBLISHED 

AS REQUIRED BY LAW; THAT NO SUFFICIENT PROTEST 

DESCRIBED IN SAID RESOLUTION HAS BEEN FILED BY THE 

QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE CITY; AND AUTHORIZING THE 

ISSUANCE OF SAID BONDS AND/OR BOND. 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body, acting for and on behalf of the City, hereby finds, 

determines, adjudicates and declares as follows: 

1. Heretofore, on June 20, 2023, the Governing Body adopted a resolution entitled 

"RESOLUTION DECLARING THE INTENTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, TO ISSUE GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE CITY AND/OR ISSUE A GENERAL OBLIGATION 

BOND OF THE CITY FOR SALE TO THE MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK, IN 

ONE OR MORE TAXABLE OR TAX-EXEMPT SERIES, ALL IN AN AGGREGATE 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED TWENTY MILLION DOLLARS 

($20,000,000); DIRECTING THE PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF SUCH 

INTENTION; AND FOR RELATED PURPOSES" (the "Intent Resolution"), wherein the 

Governing Body indicated its intent to (a) issue general obligation bonds of the City, in one or 

more taxable or tax-exempt series, in a total aggregate principal amount not to exceed Twenty 

Million Dollars ($20,000,000), and/or (b) issue a general obligation bond of the City, in one or 

more taxable or tax-exempt series, to be sold to the Mississippi Development Bank (the “Bank”) 

in a total aggregate principal amount not to exceed Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000), and 

fixed 4:00 o'clock p.m. on August 1, 2023, as the date and hour for any written protest to be 

made and filed against the issuance of such general obligation bonds of the City and/or general 

obligation bond of the City to be sold to the Bank, as described in the Intent Resolution. 

2. As required by law and as directed by the Intent Resolution, said Intent 

Resolution was published once a week for at least three (3) consecutive weeks in the Northeast 

Mississippi Daily Journal, a newspaper published in the City, and having a general circulation in 

the City, and qualified under the provisions of Section 13-3-31, Mississippi Code of 1972, as 

amended, the first publication having been made not less than twenty-one (21) days before 

August 1, 2023, and the last publication to be not more than seven (7) days prior to such date, 

said notice was published in said newspaper on July 7, 14, 21 and 28, 2023, as evidenced by the 

publisher's affidavit heretofore presented and attached hereto as EXHIBIT A. 

3. On or prior to 4:00 o'clock p.m. on August 1, 2023, no written protest against the 

issuance of such general obligation bonds of the City and/or general obligation bond of the City 

to be sold to the Bank, as described in the Intent Resolution, had been filed or presented by 

qualified electors of the City with the City Clerk of the City (the "City Clerk") in her office 

located in City Hall, as required by the Intent Resolution. 

- 693 -

Item # 32.



 

4. The Governing Body did meet at its usual meeting place in in City Hall, located at 

71 East Troy Street, Tupelo, Mississippi, at the hour of 6:00 o'clock p.m. on August 1, 2023, and 

the Governing Body does hereby find, determine and adjudicate that no written protest against 

the issuance of the general obligation bonds of the City and/or general obligation bond of the 

City to be sold to the Bank, as described in the Intent Resolution, had been duly filed with the 

City Clerk on or before 4:00 o'clock p.m. on August 1, 2023, as required by the Intent 

Resolution. 

5. The Governing Body is now authorized and empowered by the provisions of 

Sections 21-33-301 et seq., Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended (the "City Bond Act") and 

Sections 31-25-1 et seq., Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended (the "Bank Act" and together 

with the City Bond Act, the "Act") and other applicable laws of the State of Mississippi, to issue 

such general obligation bonds of the City and/or general obligation bond of the City to be sold to 

the Bank, as described in the Intent Resolution, in one or more taxable or tax-exempt series, all 

in a total aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $20,000,000 without any election on the 

question of the issuance thereof at any time within a period of two (2) years after August 1, 2023. 

6. The amount of the general obligation bonds and/or general obligation so proposed 

to be issued, when added to the outstanding indebtedness of the City, will not exceed any 

constitutional or statutory limitation of indebtedness. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  That the Governing Body is now authorized and empowered to (a) issue 

general obligation bonds (the “Bonds”), in one or more taxable or tax-exempt series, pursuant to 

the City Bond Act, and/or (b) issue a general obligation bond of the City to be sold to the Bank, 

in one or more taxable or tax-exempt series (the "City Bond") pursuant to the Act, all in the total 

maximum aggregate principal amount of not to exceed Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000), as 

described in the Intent Resolution, for the purpose set forth therein, including, but not limited to 

(i) constructing, improving or paving streets, sidewalks, driveways, parkways, walkways or 

public parking facilities, and purchasing land therefor; (ii) erecting, repairing, improving, 

adorning and equipping municipal buildings and purchasing buildings and land therefor; (iii) 

purchasing land for parks, cemeteries and public playgrounds, and improving, equipping and 

adorning the same, including the constructing, repairing and equipping of swimming pools and 

other recreational facilities; (iv) purchasing fire-fighting equipment and apparatus, and providing 

housing for same, and purchasing land therefor; (v) erecting or purchasing waterworks, gas, 

electric and other public utility plants or distribution systems or franchises, and repairing, 

improving and extending the same; (vi) establishing sanitary, storm, drainage or sewerage 

systems, and repairing, improving and extending the same; (vii) protecting a municipality, its 

streets and sidewalks from overflow, caving banks and other like dangers; (viii) constructing 

bridges and culverts; (ix) purchasing machinery and equipment, including motor vehicles 

weighing not less than twelve thousand (12,000) pounds, which have an expected useful life in 

excess of ten (10) years which expected useful life shall exceed the life of the bonds financing 

such purchase; and (x) for other authorized purposes under the City Bond Act, including funding 

capitalized interest, if applicable, and paying the costs of borrowing (collectively, the "Project"). 

- 694 -

Item # 32.



 

SECTION 2.  The Bonds or the City Bond may be issued in one or more taxable or tax-

exempt series and, if issued, will be general obligations of the City payable as to principal and 

interest out of and secured by an irrevocable pledge of the avails of a direct and continuing tax to 

be levied annually without limitation as to time, rate, or amount upon all the taxable property 

within the geographical limits of the City; provided, however, that such tax levy for any year 

shall be abated pro tanto to the extent the City on or prior to September 1 of that year has 

transferred money to the bond fund of the Bonds or the City Bond, or has made other provisions 

for funds, to be applied toward the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds or the 

City Bond due during the ensuing fiscal year of the City, in accordance with the provisions of 

any bond resolution adopted by the Governing Body in connection with the issuance of the 

Bonds or the City Bond. 

SECTION 3.  The Bonds and/or the City Bond shall be issued and offered for sale in 

accordance with further orders and directions of this Governing Body. 

[Remainder of Page Left Blank Intentionally] 

- 695 -

Item # 32.



 

The above and foregoing resolution, after having been first reduced to writing, was 

introduced by Council Member ______________________, seconded by Council Member 

______________________ and was adopted by the following roll call vote, to wit: 

YEAS:    NAYS:  ABSENT:  

 

 

 

 

 

The President thereby declared the motion carried and the resolution adopted, this the 1st 

day of August 2023. 

ATTEST:      ADOPTED: 

 

/s/ _ ______________________   /s/ ________________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL    PRESIDENT 

The above and foregoing resolution having been submitted to and approved by the Mayor 

this the 1st day of August 2023. 

 

/s/______________________    /s/________________ ______________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 

- 696 -

Item # 32.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Stephen N. Reed, Assistant City Attorney 

DATE July 28, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTANCE OF A DONATION OF RABBIT DRIVE 

TO BE USED AS A PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR VEHICULAR AND 

PEDESTRIAN INGRESS AND EGRESS, USE AND MAINTENANCE SR 
  

 

Request:  

Move to accept the donation of Rabbit Drive to be used as a public right-of-way.  

- 697 -

Item # 33.


	Top
	Item # 1.	ADM:POLICE ADVISORY ANNUAL REPORT AUG 2023
	Police Advisory Annual Report 2023

	Item # 2.	DDS: LOT MOWING HEARING AUG 2023
	Agenda Request Lot Mowing Hearing Aug 1 2023
	Preliminary Lot Mowing 08-01-23

	Item # 3.	FIN:  PUBLIC HEARING 2024 BUDGET
	public hearing 2024 Budget 8-1-2023
	phnotice budget 2024

	Item # 4.	COU:MINUTES JULY 18, 2023 AUG 2023
	Minutes 7-18-2023
	7-18-2023 Regular Revised

	Item # 5.	FIN:BILL PAY AUG 2023
	Bill Pay 8-1-2023

	Item # 6.	FIN:  ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL EXPENDITURES
	ad approval 8-1-2023

	Item # 7.	FIN:  APPROVAL OF NEW BANK ACCOUNTS
	request to open new bank account-dfa state funds bill 603-2023

	Item # 8.	ADM:ORDINANCE AMENDING MEETING SCHEDULE OF THE POLICE ADVISORY BOARD AUG 2023
	PAB Amendment
	Ordinance Amendment Police Advisory Meetings

	Item # 9.	ADM: APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE HAVEN ACRES DITCH PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENT JULY 2023
	Memo to Council_Haven Acres Ditch_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	24-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 10.	ADM: APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TUPELO AND THE MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY TO PROVIDE MATCHING GRANT FUNDS FOR THE MITCHELL ROAD CROSS DRAINS PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENT JULY 2023
	Memo to Council_Mitchell Road Cross Drains_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	26-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 11.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT GUN CLUB ROAD BOX CULVERT PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Gun Club Rd Box Culvert_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	27-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 12.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BARNES CROSSING ROAD BOX CULVERT PROJECT  AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Barnes Crossing Rd Box Culvert_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	28-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 13.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT MEDICAL PARK PIPE REPLACEMENT PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Medical Park Pipe Replacement_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	30-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 14.	ADM:  AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT FUNDS DANIELLE COVE PIPE PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Danielle Cove Pipe_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	119-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 15.	ADM:  AGREEMENT  MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  GRANT FUNDS FOR THE WATER LINE LUMPKIN TO THOMAS PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Water Line Lumpkin to Thomas_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	177-2-DW-5.15 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 16.	ADM: AGREEMENT  MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT FUNDS HWY 45 OUTFALL PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Hwy 45 Outfall_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	179-2-CW-5.5 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 17.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY TO GRANT SEWER LINE SW PUMP STATION PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Sewer Line SW Pump Station_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	195-2-CW-5.5 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 18.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT RIP RAP LUMPKIN TO KINGS CREEK PROJECT AUG2023
	Memo to Council_Rip Rap Lumpkin to Kings Creek_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	196-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 19.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT ROBINS FIELD ARCHED PIPE REPAIRS PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Robins Field Arched Pipe Repairs_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	198-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 20.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT HOLLY HILL PIPE PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Holly Hill Pipe Project_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	199-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 21.	ADM:AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT  GUM TREE PARK PIPE PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Gum Tree Park Pipe Project_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	200-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 22.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  GRANT FORD CIRCLE PIPE PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Ford Circle Pipe Project_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	201-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 23.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT FUNDS CITY PARK PIPE PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_City Park Pipe Project_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	202-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 24.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT FUNDS FOR THE VAN BUREN PIPE PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Van Buren Pipe Project_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	203-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 25.	ADM: AGREEMENT MS DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY GRANT FUNDS FOR THE RIDGEWAY DRIVE PIPE PROJECT AUG 2023
	Memo to Council_Ridgeway Drive Pipe Replacement Project_ARPA Agreement_01 Aug 2023
	204-2-SW-5.6 ARPA MCWI ROUND 2 FINAL

	Item # 26.	ADM:TRA MINUTES JAN 19, 2023 AUG 2023
	TRA Minutes 1-19-2023
	SCDF_C554e23072808200
	2902_001
	SCDF_C554e23072808190[33]
	2901_001
	2903_001

	Item # 27.	DDS: REVIEW APPROVE LOT MOWING AUG 2023
	Agenda Request Review Approve Lot Mowing Aug 1 2023
	Preliminary Lot Mowing 08-01-23

	Item # 28.	DDS: APPROVE LOT MOWING LIENS AUG 2023
	Agenda Request Review Approve Lot Mowing Liens Jul 26 2023
	Lot Mowing Liens for 8-1-23

	Item # 29.	PW: BID VAN BUREN AVE DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 2023-032PW AUG 2023
	MEMO BID APPROVAL 2023-032PW VAN BUREN DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS
	Recom of Award_07-25-2023
	BID TAB
	sign in sheet
	Van Buren Drainage BID TAB_07-21-2023
	addendum #1
	TOWNES
	Paul Smithey Constr
	ENSCOR
	HODGES
	cover sheet
	phillips proposal
	bid bond

	Item # 30.	PW: BID APPROVAL 6 MOS HOT MIX SUPPLY BID 2023-031PW AUG 2023
	PW MEMO 2023-031PW BID APPROVAL 6 MONTH HOT SUPPLY MIX
	BID 2023-031PW HOT MIX APAC QUOTE , SIGN IN AND BID TAB
	2023-031PW Ad for Bids- Hot Mix- 6 Month Supply

	Item # 31.	COL: MINUTES OF JUNE 19, 2023 AUG 2023
	minutes 06-23
	June 2023 signed minutes

	Item # 32.	ADM:RESO FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT THE RESOLUTION ADOPTED ON JUNE 20, 2023, WAS DULY PUBLISHED AS REQUIRED BY LAW; THAT NO SUFFICIENT PROTEST DESCRIBED IN SAID RESOLUTION HAS BEEN FILED BY THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE CITY; AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF SAID BONDS AND/OR BOND AUG 2023
	Agenda item No Protest
	MDB City of Tupelo MS GO General Obligation Bonds 2023 (236147) - No Protest Resolution (8_1_2023 mtg) 2 (002)

	Item # 33.	ADM: Rabbit Drive Acceptance; Aug 23
	Agenda Request Rabbit Drive

	Bottom

